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OUR VISION
TechnologyOne’s vision

We achieve this by:

is to deliver comprehensive

• Providing exceptional customer

and deeply integrated

service and taking total
responsibility for each customer

enterprise business

by developing, marketing,

software solutions that

selling, implementing and

have a profound effect on
our customers and their
user experience.

supporting our solutions the Power of One advantage.
• Targeting key vertical
markets where we deliver
fully integrated end-to-end

• Evolving our solutions in real
time with our customers, and
providing them with long
term security by delivering a
continuing, painless and cost
effective upgrade path.
• Embracing new technologies
as they become available, to
signiﬁcantly enhance the way
our clients do business.
• Employing a team of people

enterprise business software

who are innovative and

solutions.

challenge conventional thinking,

• Delivering functionally rich
solutions that work ‘out of the

and are empowered to make a
difference.

box’ with inbuilt ﬂexibility,
and do not require code
customisation.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Revenue

Full Year 2006 v 2005

2006
$ (000)

2005
$ (000)

Variance
$ (000)

Increase
%

Revenue1

65,242

53,880

11,362

21%

Expenses2

36,411

29,362

7,049

24%

EBITDAR3

28,831

24,518

4,313

18%

R&D4

12,675

10,220

2,455

24%

EBITDA5

16,156

14,298

1,858

13%

1,142

1,154

(12)

(1%)

15,014

13,144

1,870

14%

1,243

1,285

(42)

(3%)

NPBT7

16,257

14,429

1,828

13%

NPAT8 Reported

12,314

10,597

1,717

16%

Earnings Per Share - Reported (Cents)

4.12

3.54

0.58

16%

Dividend Per Share (Cents)

3.41

3.10

0.31

10%

Adjusted Return on Shareholders' Equity

62%

54%

Cash and Cash Equivalents

22,279

25,623

(3,344)

(13%)

Net Operating Cash Flow

8,613

11,061

(2,448)

(22%)

3%

3%

EBITDA5 Margin

24%

26%

NPBT7 Margin

24%

26%

R&D4 as Percentage of Total Revenue

19%

19%
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
On behalf of Technology One Limited
(TechnologyOne), I am pleased to announce
the company’s results under the new
Australian equivalents to International
Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS) for the
year ended 30 June 2006, showing a record
Net Proﬁt After Tax (NPAT) of $12.3m, an
increase of 16%.
This result exceeds market expectations that
the company set at the start of the ﬁnancial
year of growth between 5% and 10%. It is an
exceptionally strong result as we continued
to invest signiﬁcant funds in our aggressive
Research and Development (R&D) program,
as well as expanding our products, services
and geographical reach, the beneﬁts of which
we will see in the coming years.

Interpreting our Results Under
AIFRS
Our Net Proﬁt Before Tax (NPBT) under
AIFRS was $16.3m, an increase of 13%. As
previously disclosed to the market the main
impact of the new AIFRS standard has been
in the area of Revenue Recognition.

If we had continued accounting our results
under the previous AGAAP standard, our
NPBT is estimated to be $16.4m which
would represent an increase of 15% over
the corresponding full year (also accounted
under AGAAP). This is in line with the
information we provided to the market, that
we did not expect at the full year that there
would be a signiﬁcant difference between
our NPBT under AIFRS versus our NPBT
under AGAAP.

Analysis of Performance
Highlights of our full year results, under
the new AIFRS standard, are as follows:
• NPAT up 16% to $12.3m, an increase
of $1.7m.
• Revenue up 21% to $65.2m, an increase
of $11.4m.
• NPBT up 13% to $16.3m, an increase
of $1.8m.
• R&D remained strong up 24% to $12.7m,
an increase of $2.5m and representing
19% of revenue.
• Expenses excluding R&D and depreciation
up 24% to $36.4m, an increase of $7.0m.

The NPAT increase is signiﬁcantly greater
than NPBT increase due to the signiﬁcant
tax beneﬁts associated with the move
to Tax Consolidation, and the associated
beneﬁts that ﬂowed on from the acquisition
of Proclaim Software Pty Ltd in 2000.
This is an exceptionally strong result
because of the continued strong demand
for our products as evidenced by the 58%
increase in new licence fees.
Our Balance Sheet continues to remain
strong with Cash and Cash Equivalents of
$22.3m and a conservative Debt/Equity
ratio of 3%. Our Return On Equity of 32%
places us in the very top of publicly listed
companies in Australia. Our Return on
Equity (adjusted for non-working capital)
is exceptionally high at 62% compared to
54% last year.
Our Operating Cash Flow of $8.6m in
comparison to our NPAT of $12.3m was
impacted by a number of factors including
signiﬁcant billings of approximately
$10.7m in June that therefore could not
be converted to cash in the ﬁnancial year,
coupled with staggered payment terms
associated with our larger projects this year.
Performance was exceptionally strong
this year in our North-West Region
(Queensland, South Australia, Western
Australia, Tasmania and New Zealand).
Southern Region (New South Wales,
Victoria and the Australian Capital Territory)
performance has improved, but is still below
our expectations.

“TechnologyOne continues to evolve
ﬁnancially, this year achieving a record
16% Net Proﬁt After Tax growth.”

ADRIAN DI MARCO
EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN
2006 ANNUAL REPORT
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Continued
Highlights

Particular highlights were the following:

The highlights of the last 12 months are as
follows:

• TechnologyOne Financials Ci (the ﬁrst
product in our Connected Intelligence
series) licence fees up 44%.
• Business Intelligence, a new initiative,
generating licence fees of $1.3m in its
ﬁrst full year of operation.
• TechnologyOne Student Management
licence fees up 151%.

•
•
•
•

Continued Strong New Business
Continued Strong R&D Program
Continued Organisational Changes
TechnologyOne United Kingdom

Continued Strong New Business
TechnologyOne’s current products
continued to be very successful in winning
substantial new business from our large
multinational competitors. Numerous
deals were signed including high proﬁle
organisations like the Government of Papua
New Guinea, Adelaide Bank, Queensland
Airports, Workcover Queensland, Ministry
of Justice New Zealand and Queensland
University of Technology.

Continued Strong R&D Program

We continued to perform strongly in our
core markets:

Strategic Initiatives in R&D

• General Commercial - securing 38 new
customers.
• Local Government - securing 12 new
councils.
• State and Federal Government - securing
5 large new agencies.
• Higher Education - securing 4 new
customers.
• HR & Payroll - securing 38 new clients,
taking the number of customers of our
TechnologyOne HR & Payroll solution
to 141.

Research and Development (R&D) was a
signiﬁcant and important investment by
TechnologyOne in 2006. R&D expenditure
was $12.7m, an increase of $2.5m and
representing 19% of revenue. R&D was
across our extensive portfolio of enterprise
applications. The company continued world
best practice and fully expensed all R&D as
incurred.

TechnologyOne’s focus continues to
be to bring to the market an integrated
enterprise software application with ‘out
of the box’ deep functionality based on the
very latest technology and software design
concepts. Our new Connected Intelligence
(Ci) platform is critical to delivering on
this promise and will allow us to achieve a
signiﬁcant advantage over our competitors.

As such, the major focus across all our R&D
teams has been the continued development
of our Ci suite of applications. It has been
a signiﬁcant ﬁnancial commitment by the
company to progressively move all our
products across to our new and exciting Ci
platform. With the success of our ﬁrst two
products, TechnologyOne Financials Ci and
TechnologyOne Works & Assets Ci, the
company has now accelerated the move of
the remaining products, with progressive
releases over the 2006 and 2007 calendar
years for the following:
•
•
•
•

TechnologyOne Student Management
TechnologyOne Property
TechnologyOne HR & Payroll
TechnologyOne Supply Chain

TechnologyOne Financials Ci continued to
gain traction, with all new customers
selecting this solution. There are now over
152 sites committed to this exciting new
product, of which 125 sites are now live. We
continued to enhance our Core Enterprise
Suite with Release 11.3 now nearing
completion.
The company has also increased R&D
resources to accelerate new modules and
features for TechnologyOne Works & Assets
and TechnologyOne Business Intelligence.
Early stage R&D has also continued on a
proposed new product, TechnologyOne
Customer Relationship Management (CRM).
The feasibility/proof of concept is expected
to be completed by mid 2007 calendar year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ADRIAN DI MARCO
EXECUTIVE
CHAIRMAN
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RON MCLEAN
NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

JOHN MACTAGGART
NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

SYD LARWILL
NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

KEVIN BLINCO
NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

RICHARD ANSTEY
NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

Of particular importance was the availability
of Release 11.2 of TechnologyOne
Financials, which contains the substantial
enhancements required for our entry into
the very large and strategically important
United Kingdom market.
Over the next 12 to 24 months extensive
enhancements are planned across all
products, which will substantially increase
their functionality and feature set. New
modules are also planned for both
TechnologyOne Student Management and
TechnologyOne Property to further extend
the depth and breadth of these products.

Continued Organisational Changes
Over the last 12 months we have continued
to evolve our organisation to make it more
responsive and internationally ready.
Firstly we introduced the ‘Awesome
Software’ initiative which saw our
R&D teams move to much smaller and
empowered ‘domain teams’ to substantially
increase ownership, commitment and
innovation. The results are now starting to
materialise. We also took the opportunity
to appoint our most senior R&D staff
member to run a new R&D team called
the Core Enterprise Suite, which brings
together the previously separate R&D teams
of Financials, HR & Payroll, Supply Chain,
Works & Assets and our new Business
Intelligence team under one senior manager,
Mr Peter Cameron. This will allow us to
achieve signiﬁcant beneﬁts and to truly
deliver one deeply integrated enterprise
solution to the market.

We also introduced the ‘Exceptional
Customer Service’ initiative and ‘Exceptional
Customer Sales’ initiative which has seen
the responsibilities of two of our Operating
Ofﬁcers change substantially. Now all of
consulting is under the responsibility of a
single Operating Ofﬁcer, Mr Mark Culverson,
while Sales and Marketing comes under the
responsibility of a single Operating Ofﬁcer,
Mr Roger Phare. Marketing has also been
aligned with Sales, as well as a focus and
commitment to seven identiﬁed verticals
that TechnologyOne is now committed to
achieve a dominant position.
The seven identiﬁed markets are as follows:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Government
Local Government
Financial Services
Education
Health & Community Services
Utilities
Managed Services

We have also brought a greater focus onto
our Asian operation, with the Asian region
now under this proven executive team, to
create the Australia, Asia & New Zealand
(AANZ) region. I am conﬁdent we will see
the continuing beneﬁts of these changes in
2006 and 2007.

TechnologyOne United Kingdom
TechnologyOne opened its ﬁrst European
Ofﬁce in the United Kingdom, at
Maidenhead in March 2006. A country
manager with an exceptional track record
was appointed, and key Australian staff
relocated to this new ofﬁce to ensure the
transfer of knowledge, skill and culture to
the United Kingdom.
The ﬁrst product to be introduced to
the United Kingdom is TechnologyOne
Financials. We have also introduced an
early adopter program to attempt to fast
track our ﬁrst few customers in this market.
Initial feedback has been very positive, and
we have quickly developed a good quality
pipeline of opportunities.

Our Strategy

DAVID ORCHARD
COMPANY
SECRETARY
AND CFO

Our strategy over the next 24 months is
to be highly focused in our endeavours.
In particular we will focus on the seven
markets identiﬁed above, and re-align
our organisation to achieve continuing
and greater success in these sectors. This
will see sales, marketing, consulting, R&D
and acquisition/partnerships focused on
increasing our success in these markets.

Other major initiatives include:

United Kingdom
The United Kingdom is an important market
for us, and we expect to continue to invest
strongly over the next few years. In the
medium term we expect this region to be a
strong contributor to growth.

Continued Tier One Sucess
Our new Connected Intelligence (Ci) series
has provided us with a strong leadership
position over our competitors, and is
playing an important role in increasing
our overall ‘win rate’. Continuing market
confusion with our competitor’s offerings
should see further Tier One opportunities
eventuate for us, but we will also need to
further improve our products and services
for these larger deals.

HR & Payroll
Particular focus is also being given to our
HR & Payroll solution, to ensure it meets
the needs of our existing customers, and
will, over the next few years, be ready to
be sold as a ‘best in class’ solution. This has
the opportunity to be a new and signiﬁcant
revenue stream in future years.

Local Government
The Local Government market continues to
be fragmented between three players. We
do not believe this is sustainable in the long
term. Our approach is to ensure we are the
‘last man standing’ in this market, and we
will achieve this as follows:
• Bringing an exciting new generation
solution called Property Ci to this market.
• Increased focus on customer satisfaction.
• Adding signiﬁcant value, by providing a
totally integrated enterprise solution that
addresses all aspects of local government
business requirements.

Higher Education
The Higher Education market is an
important growth market for us over the
forthcoming years, and we are pro-actively
building the infrastructure we need to meet
the challenges associated with signiﬁcant
growth. This product will be a good
candidate for us to take into the United
Kingdom market in the next few years,
which will then allow us to continue to grow
this market sector.

2006 ANNUAL REPORT
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
Continued
Business Intelligence

Evolution

Long Term

Our new Business Intelligence product will
be ofﬁcially released in early 2007. This will
provide a powerful and uniﬁed Business
Intelligence solution across all our products,
that will work ‘out of the box’. We expect
this will in time be embraced by the majority
of our existing clients; as well as providing an
important point of differentiation with our
competitors.

TechnologyOne today is providing one of
the most extensive and broad enterprise
solutions available anywhere in the
world, encompassing Financials, HR &
Payroll, Supply Chain, Budgeting, Property,
Student Management, Works & Assets and
integrated Business Intelligence. We will
continue to look at ways to further expand
our total solution suite, as it is clear that
organisations are looking for one solution
from one single vendor, that is totally
integrated and works ‘out of the box’ to
meet their enterprise needs.

TechnologyOne has built a very strong
business in providing world class enterprise
applications. Our strategy has been to
continue to expand the range of our
enterprise applications and provide a
compelling proposition to our potential
customers based on functionality,
integration, product breadth and depth,
usability and user experience, and our
unique Power of One business model.

Works & Assets
We continue to aggressively expand our
Works & Assets solution, as this is critical to
achieving our ‘last man standing’ position
in Local Government, as well as having
the potential to open up new markets for
TechnologyOne in the longer term.

Expansion Within Our Customer Base
There are signiﬁcant opportunities for us to
cross sell our extended range of applications
into our customer base, providing them
with a very cost effective and totally
integrated suite of applications. Once our
customers have moved across to our new Ci
applications we will be able to better address
this signiﬁcant opportunity. We will also
need to adopt a new and more pro-active
and effective account management strategy
to be successful in growing the revenue from
our customer base.

Continued Organisational Change
With our expanding product line, if we
are to be more effective in selling these
products outside our core area of expertise
and comfort, we will need to implement a
more effective and focused organisational
structure. Further changes are planned to our
organisational structure in the 2007 ﬁnancial
year, to achieve this objective.
In order to meet the challenges of continuing
strong growth, TechnologyOne is also
investing in the substantial infrastructure
we will need to continue to be successful,
encompassing improved software systems
for time billing, invoicing and utilisation/
project management. We are in the fortunate
position that we are able to use our own
enterprise software to meet many of these
requirements. Infrastructure is also being
added in terms of additional hardware and
ofﬁces.
Lastly we are continuing to review and evolve
our long term strategy for our Supply Chain
solution and Project Services business.

6

2006 ANNUAL REPORT

Our Power of One business model in which
we develop, market, sell, implement and
support our applications, without the use of
implementation partners and value added
resellers is also being well received in the
market.
We will need to continue to evolve our
organisational structure, to efﬁciently
and effectively handle the challenges
in bringing such a broad and expanding
enterprise solution to the Australian and the
international market place, using our highly
successful Power of One business model.

Outlook
In the next 12 months, we expect
continuing strong growth from our Core
Enterprise Suite. In particular, there are
continuing strong opportunities in New
Zealand, as well as in our two biggest states:
New South Wales and Victoria. We also
see strong growth in the higher education
market, as more universities embrace our
solutions.
Over this time we will continue to invest
strongly in the following areas:
•
•
•
•

R&D
United Kingdom
Asia
Extending our Management Team

The challenges associated with continuing
rapid growth will need to be pro-actively
managed, as well as carefully managing
the investment in our United Kingdom and
Asian operations, our ongoing aggressive
R&D program, and increasing expansion of
our teams of people to meet the demands
for our products.

Coupled with our continued aggressive R&D
program to further expand the breadth and
depth of our products, our new generation
Connected Intelligence series of products,
and continued geographical expansion into
new markets such as the United Kingdom,
provides us with signiﬁcant opportunities
for long term and continued growth for
TechnologyOne.
I also expect to see long term opportunities
to further expand the geographies we
operate in, possibly to the USA and/or
China.

Dividend Increased
The Board remains committed to the careful
management of our capital base to ensure
that capital, where appropriate, is returned
to our shareholders, while still allowing us to
grow our business. The dividend for the year
has been once again increased, this year
by 10% to 3.41 cents fully franked, making
this the sixth consecutive year of increasing
dividends. Based on the share price as at
11 August 2006 of 68 cents, this represents
a fully franked dividend yield of 5%.

Afterword
I would like to once again take this
opportunity to thank our staff for their
creativity, passion and commitment. It is
an honour to lead such a talented group
of people who are committed to making
TechnologyOne one of the world’s great
software companies.

EVOLVING OUR STRATEGY
TechnologyOne’s success is due to the
company’s ability to continually evolve its
strategy, solution suite and business model
inline with market demands and changes in
technology.
In 19 years of operation, whilst the majority
of enterprise software vendors have
disappeared, TechnologyOne has not only
survived, but thrived to become a leader in
the enterprise applications market, because
of our continually evolving software, our
unique business model and by responding
with speed and agility to our customers’
business requirements.
Moving into our 20th year of operation,
we have grown our business to be one
of Australia’s largest and most successful
publicly listed software companies, with
a workforce of some 400 staff, 12 ofﬁces
throughout Asia Paciﬁc and the United
Kingdom and a suite of eight fully integrated
enterprise business software solutions.

TechnologyOne’s continued growth will
come from further evolving our business, as
follows:
• Delivering deeply integrated solutions for
our target vertical markets
• Extending our product breadth for our
existing customers
• Expanding into new vertical markets
• Expanding into new geographies
• Choosing the best technology platform
for our customers
• Speed and agility in R&D
• The Power of One company

We are in a unique position in that we
are one of a very few vendors to own the
intellectual property of a Core Enterprise
Suite, incorporating Financials, HR &
Payroll, Supply Chain, Budgeting, Business
Intelligence and Works & Assets software.
This provides us with a platform on which
to build ‘vertical market speciﬁc software’
and deliver deeply integrated ‘best in
class’, functionally rich, ‘out of the box’
solutions to organisations in our target
markets. We provide our customers with a
single enterprise solution from one vendor,
reducing their total cost of ownership,
improving their service and providing a
superior user experience.

• Recruiting and retaining remarkable
people

Delivering deeply integrated
solutions for target vertical
markets
Our strategy is to target our R&D, sales and
marketing to seven key vertical markets
where there is no dominant software vendor
and in which we have a strong solution ﬁt.
These seven vertical markets are:
Government, Local Government, Financial
Services, Education, Health & Community
Services, Utilities and Managed Services.

TECHNOLOGYONE OPENED ITS FIRST EUROPEAN OFFICE IN MARCH 2006
2006 ANNUAL REPORT
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EVOLVING OUR STRATEGY
Continued
Extending our product breadth for
our existing customers
Our customers are continually looking for
greater breadth in their enterprise solutions
ideally from a single software vendor. We
work with our customers by continually
expanding the breadth of our solution suite
to incorporate ever increasing functionality.
An example of this is our commitment to
delivering a deeply integrated Business
Intelligence solution, providing an ‘out of
the box’ solution for quick and easy access
to analyse information stored across an
organisation’s entire enterprise. We are also
looking to further expand our solution suite
with an integrated Customer Relationship
Management (CRM) solution.
We will continue to enhance the depth of
our products for existing customers through
acquisitions, partnerships and further R&D.

Expanding into new vertical
markets
The opportunity exists to further expand
into new vertical markets, as we have done
with our successful Student Management
solution for Higher and Tertiary Education
Institutions and our Property solution
for Local Government. This will create
opportunities for further growth in the
future.

Expanding into new geographies
TechnologyOne has achieved outstanding
success in the Australian, New Zealand and
Asian-Paciﬁc markets by delivering a unique
value proposition, ‘Awesome Software’ and
‘Exceptional Customer Service’. We believe
that our unique strategy will create further
opportunities for us to move into new
geographies. Our expansion into the United
Kingdom is showing early promise, and
longer term we are considering expansion
into the USA or China.

Choosing the best technology
platform for our customers
TechnologyOne’s commitment to
continuous R&D protects our customers
from the risks that technological advances
have on their business. It allows our
customers to remain conﬁdent that their
investment in TechnologyOne solutions is
‘future proof’, and that our solutions will not
become legacy applications.

8
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TechnologyOne chooses the best
technology platform for our customers,
by ensuring that we are technology
independent. We select the best technology
in the marketplace as the foundation for
each new generation of our applications
and seamlessly migrate our customers
onto this new technology platform at
no additional cost. Over the years our
customers have enjoyed a continuous and
smooth transition from proprietary mini
computer architecture, to open systems
client/server architecture, and more
recently to our internet enabled Connected
Intelligence (Ci) series.
Our Ci series is an example of our ability to
continually deliver leading edge solutions
to our customers. It is an exciting, new
generation platform that sets the standard
in the future direction of enterprise business
software solutions. Our customers have
embraced this new release and are realising
signiﬁcant beneﬁts today.
Our customers appreciate the fact that
TechnologyOne is always at the leading
edge of software technology. Our Ci series
is based on an advanced service orientated
architecture (SOA) built on the Microsoft
.NET platform, and supports the latest
in web services technology to connect
disparate systems.
This is in contrast to our competitors who
use their own proprietary technology
platforms. This will inevitably lead to
technological obsolesce of their products, as
they are not able to independently evaluate
and choose the best technology to meet
their customers’ future needs.

Speed and agility in R&D
We respond with speed and agility to our
customers’ changing business requirements,
by rapidly delivering advances in product
functionality. TechnologyOne is the only
enterprise vendor to deliver a major release
to our customers every six months, that
they have the option to then install. By
working closely with our customers in this
fashion we are able to ensure we continually
evolve our software in ‘real time’ with
our customers, and are able to respond
to their ever changing needs. We believe
that our customers are an endless source
of knowledge and by listening and learning
from them, we will continue to succeed
and remain at the forefront of enterprise
business software.

An integral part of our strategy is to ensure
all our customers are on a single source
code baseline, and that our solutions are
functionally rich and delivered ‘out of
the box’ without requiring costly code
customisations on site. This is not only very
cost effective for our customers, but also
allows them to easily accept and install new
releases when they require them.

The Power of One company
The future of the enterprise business
software market will be classiﬁed into
those vendors that retain their customers,
and those that do not retain them.
TechnologyOne understands that our
customers are shaping our future. Our
Power of One business model represents the
delivery of ‘Exceptional Customer Service’
through the alignment of development,
marketing, sales, implementation and
support of our own solutions.
When a customer invests in a
TechnologyOne solution they have a direct
relationship with us. We do not sell our
products through resellers, nor do we use
third party organisations to implement our
solutions.
We guarantee to our customers that
their concerns are our concerns, whether
they are focused on business needs,
underlying technology, ‘on time, on budget’
implementations, or excellence in support
and customer services. Our guarantee is
that we will provide our customers with the
best integrated solution and services on the
market.

Recruiting and retaining remarkable
people
TechnologyOne continues to evolve as an
organisation because we have a team of
remarkable staff who are innovative and
challenge conventional thinking. The key
to our ongoing success is going to be the
retention of our inherent culture as we
continue to grow, and our ability to ﬁnd
and support exceptional people. We need
to provide an environment where staff
have the courage to lead and are relentless
in their pursuit of excellence. We will
evolve by empowering our people to make
a difference, and a combined belief that
together we can achieve anything.

THE POWER OF THE TECHONE WAY

Our success is born from an entrepreneurial spirit that
connects our customers, our people, our software and
our speed to market. We call this connected vision –
The TechOne Way.

The Power Of Awesome Software

The Power Of Our Customers

We will lead the marketplace with
innovative software that is reliable and does
not fail. We will work relentlessly to build
awesome software that engages, empowers
and excites users. Our software sets the
standard. We produce software that has a
profound effect on the user experience.

By helping our customers achieve their goals
we will also achieve ours. Our customers are
a fantastic source of knowledge. By listening
to our customers and working directly with
them to evolve our software to meet their
changing business needs, we will succeed.
We demonstrate our commitment through
delivering exceptional service and awesome
software. Our customers shape our future.

The Power Of Speed And Agility

The Power Of Remarkable People

We structure our business to respond
with speed and agility. We will succeed by
delivering our products to market faster
and better than our competitors.

Our people are innovative and challenge
conventional thinking. We have the courage
to lead and are relentless in our pursuit of
excellence. We think freely, work together
and build strong relationships. Our people
operate with respect and integrity and
they are empowered to make a difference.
We will succeed with trust, commitment,
teamwork and the belief that we can
achieve anything.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
In some ways this has been a decisive year
for TechnologyOne as the United Kingdom
operations of the company commenced
in March 2006. On the other hand, the
expansion into the United Kingdom
is an entirely incremental and natural
evolutionary progression for a highly
successful Australian company and is simply
another step in our growth internationally.
TechnologyOne United Kingdom has been
set up using the principles and methods we
have reﬁned over the past decade in Asia
Paciﬁc. Most importantly we have continued
to adopt and build on the unique Power of
One business model that we successfully
built in the Asia Paciﬁc operations. It is this
unique and pervasive model that has guided
us through another exciting year for all parts
of the business.
TechnologyOne has continued to reﬁne its
organisational structure to more closely
align with our business model. We have
reviewed the roles of our Operating Ofﬁcers,
and tasked Roger Phare as Operating
Ofﬁcer with a clear focus on ‘Exceptional
Customer Sales’ across the Asia Paciﬁc, and
Mark Culverson as Operating Ofﬁcer for the
delivery of ‘Exceptional Customer Service’
through our consulting services in the
same region. We have already begun to see
positive results from these changes, even
though they were made mid-way during
the year.
Richley Down remains Operating Ofﬁcer
for New Business Development and Higher

OPERATING OFFICERS

Education, whilst Peter Cameron has
been appointed General Manager, Core
Enterprise Suite to deliver on the
‘Awesome Software’ initiative by driving
operating improvements through the
Core Enterprise Suite.

Research & Development (R&D)
TechnologyOne has established itself
by providing a wide range of business
applications to suit the business
requirements of organisations in target
vertical markets, and by delivering those
applications in an ‘evergreen’ technology
environment.
We have continued the development of
our ‘best in class’ solutions this year with a
strong focus on providing deeply integrated
‘out of the box’ solutions. Our R&D teams
are driven to provide highly intuitive
software and we believe a focus on simplicity
and usability is the key to providing business
solutions to our customers that can be
easily implemented and devolved widely
throughout their organisations.
In the past year, we established a central
management structure for the Core
Enterprise Suite, incorporating Financials,
HR & Payroll, Supply Chain, Works &
Assets and Business Intelligence (BI), to
ensure the provision of totally integrated
solutions with one look and feel. We also
introduced the ‘Awesome Software’
initiative to promote ownership, innovation
and commitment to our products. This
included the rollout of small, efﬁcient and
empowered domain teams.

Demonstrating our commitment to deeply
integrated, ’out of the box’ solutions, is
the investment in our BI solution. This
solution will provide our customers with
powerful BI tools that are fully integrated
across our Enterprise Suite enabling our
customers to quickly and easily analyse the
information stored in their business systems.
As an integrated solution, it removes the
need for separate BI implementations that
require continual management of complex
system conﬁgurations and data extraction
processes.
A major focus of our R&D teams is the
continued development of our Connected
Intelligence (Ci) series. We have received
positive feedback from the marketplace
since the release of the ﬁrst two key
products in the Ci series; TechnologyOne
Financials and Works & Assets, and we
are accelerating the development of our
remaining products with progressive
releases planned over the 2006, 2007 and
2008 calendar years.
Key achievements in the 2006 ﬁnancial year
for each solution in our Enterprise Suite are
as follows.

TechnologyOne Financials
• Completed the Ci migration and rolled
this out to 125 customers.
• Released full multi-currency capability to
support the international expansion, in
particular the United Kingdom market.
• Investigated the rewrite of posting and
support of performance in an N-tier
environment to meet the requirements
of devolving the solution through large
organisations.
• Incorporated the changes required to
fully implement the new International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
within our applications.
• Invested in improving the functionality
and capability of the solution to meet the
needs of our diverse customer base.
• Utilised a Service Orientated Architecture
(SOA) to enable clients to gain a
more seamless integration between
TechnologyOne Financials and their other
systems.

TechnologyOne Business Intelligence

RICHLEY DOWN
OPERATING OFFICER –
NEW BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT
10
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MARK CULVERSON
OPERATING OFFICER –
PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES

ROGER PHARE
OPERATING OFFICER –
SALES AND
MARKETING

• Completed migration to the new Ci
platform.
• Signiﬁcant expansion of functionality
to enable reporting from across the
Enterprise Suite, enabling organisational
wide Business Intelligence.

• Delivery of Published Reports functionality
to enable reports and enterprise
information to be distributed to executives
and managers in the form of graphical
summaries displaying Key Performance
Indicators (KPIs).
• Delivery of My Queries, a simple, easy to
use end user query tool.
• Further R&D into an extended suite of
‘out of the box’ TechnologyOne Business
Intelligence tools.

TechnologyOne Budgeting
• Released TechnologyOne Budgeting on
the Ci platform.
• Made signiﬁcant enhancements based
on feedback from the expanding
customer base. This includes multiple
layers, user-deﬁned budget notes and
user-deﬁned formulas.
• Added 21 new clients, taking the
total number to over 100 using the
TechnologyOne Budgeting solution.

TechnologyOne Works & Assets
• Completed migration to the Ci series.
• Continued enhancement of the solution,
including improved enquires and reporting.
• Enhanced the Projects and Billing functions
to meet the needs of a diverse customer
base which now includes Professional
Services organisations.
• Implemented internally to track all projects
including international R&D, as well as
management and billing of service delivery
projects.
• Continued rollout to our asset intensive
client base, with a further 20 clients
purchasing the solution in the past year.

TechnologyOne Supply Chain
• Continued the migration to the new
Ci platform.
• Completed multi-currency initiative
to provide an integrated approach for
procurement across Financials and
Supply Chain using multiple currencies.
• Delivered improvements to Purchasing
and Sales Orders including Foreign
Currency, Shipping and Packing,
Forward Orders, Order Documents and
consolidated invoice processing.
• Completed new release of Point of Sale
(POS), providing improved functionality
and a more intuitive user interface.

TechnologyOne Property
• Commenced migration to the Ci platform.
• Developed initial proof of concept of
a mobile solution in conjunction with
a mobile provider, to allow Councils
to perform their Health Licencing
Inspections remotely. This solution has
successfully been sold into an initial two
pilot sites, and we are reviewing the next
stage of development.

• Involvement with a number of regulation
reduction projects under the Federal
Governments Regulation Reduction
Incentive Fund (RRIF) initiative, including
ePermits, a project developed in
partnership with the City of Charles Sturt,
(South Australia).

TechnologyOne Student Management
• Delivered the ﬁrst release of Ci on limited
distribution.
• Signiﬁcant improvements to the Student
Self Service functionality, particularly
relating to Student Allocations, Student
Self Enrolments and Self Service Financial
Reports.
• Finalisation of the changes required to
comply with the HESA/HEIMS legislation
and to investigate enhancements required
for 2007 compliance.
• Embraced a Service Orientated
Architecture (SOA) to enable clients
to achieve more seamless integration
between TechnologyOne Student
Management and their other
applications. This included the provision
of the ﬁrst set of Public Services
(Web Services) to clients.

The Power of One

TechnologyOne HR & Payroll
• Completed the ﬁrst development phase of
migration to Ci, including new functionality
to streamline the implementation
and ongoing maintenance of payroll
conﬁgurations.
• Developed program to work with existing
customers on improvements to base
payroll.
• Extensions to the Human Resource
modules, including Organisation
Management, undertaken to deliver
position driven payroll for large
organisations that are position-centric.
• Commencement of the Employee
Development module to progress the vision
of full employee lifecycle management
facilitated within the product. This will
provide a complete end-to-end solution
from recruitment through to termination.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
Continued
Application Development Framework
Underpinning all TechnologyOne’s solutions
is a unique Application Development
Framework (ADF) which provides us with
the architecture, framework and application
development environment to achieve
a consistent look and feel across all the
company’s software development. The ADF
delivers many of our software solutions’
advanced features; put simply it allows us
to manage our solutions within a single
infrastructure.
Key initiatives:
• Delivered second Ci release including
personal workﬂow functionality and
improvements to scalability for larger
organisations.
• Upgraded to the latest version of .NET to
deliver a leading edge solution to clients.
• Development of a new web platform
within Ci to deliver customer self-service
functionality.
• Initial proof of concept of a Customer
Relationship Management (CRM) solution
to extend TechnologyOne’s Enterprise
Suite and provide more to customers, ’out
of the box’.

Custom Software Development
Key projects:
• Completed a number of large
custom .NET developments for
organisations including Legal Aid
Queensland, Queensland Sugar Limited
and Education Queensland.
• Commenced large .NET redevelopment
for Queensland State Archives.
• Signed extensions to existing contracts
including the Ofﬁce of State Revenue and
the Department of Natural Resources,
Mines and Water.

Product Marketing
The Product Marketing Group has aimed
to position itself as a key conduit of
information between markets, clients,
regions, product service delivery and R&D.
Major activities of this group have been:
• Reﬁnement of TechnologyOne’s market
deﬁnition to seven key vertical markets
and development of marketing collateral
and messages for each of these markets.
• Appointment of additional Product
Specialists with particular focus on the
Business Intelligence area.
• Delivery of a new corporate website and
marketing collateral to support the Power
of One business model.

12
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• Continued competitive analysis and
market research to identify strengths and
weaknesses and develop strategies for
sales and R&D teams to competitively
position the organisation.

Sales & Distribution
The 2006 ﬁnancial year marked a new
sophistication in the sales approach across
the organisation. Key elements of this
approach included:
• Identiﬁying seven key markets within the
wider areas of service intensive and asset
intensive industries.
• Named account identiﬁcation within
the key markets, and target named
opportunity accounts have been
identiﬁed over a rolling three year basis.
• Increased focus on adding key strategic
value to existing clients, resulting in
increased products and services to
facilitate such value.
TechnologyOne expanded into the Tier
One market, supported by key deals in
Government and Education. We are
leading the ‘second wave’ of Tier One
suppliers, following on from the ﬁrst
foray by large multinational corporations,
who swept through and left a dissatisﬁed
customer base.
Two executive appointments were made to
drive sales growth, with the new position of
Asian Regional Manager created and a new
Victorian State Manager appointed.
New business and growth by vertical market
is outlined below.

Government
TechnologyOne is now clearly recognised
as a key player in international government.
International funding agencies, World Bank
and AusAid, recognise TechnologyOne
as one of very few business software
organisations capable of providing solutions
to emerging or post conﬂict organisations
throughout the Asia Paciﬁc region. Our clear
differentiator is integrated Budgeting and
Business Intelligence, as well as a strong
focus on procurement for government
organisations.
New clients include:
• Government of Papua New Guinea
• Ministry of Justice (New Zealand)
• Ministry of Economic Development
(New Zealand)
• Workcover Queensland

Local Government
This year further reinforced
TechnologyOne’s dominance in the Local
Government market with a number of
strategic sales, particularly in Western
Australia and New Zealand. The Western
Australia wins were particularly meritorious,
with TechnologyOne being selected as the
sole supplier on the West Australian Local
Government Association (WALGA) Panel
contract for large councils, and on a panel of
suppliers for small to medium councils.
New clients include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

City of Bayswater
City of Belmont
City of Cambridge
City of Gosnells
City of Melville
Glenorchy City Council
Goulburn Mulwaree Council
Horowhenua District Council
La Trobe City Council
Palerang Council
Rodney District Council
Waipa District Council

Financial Services
TechnologyOne continued to enhance its
reputation in this market. The strategic
signing with Adelaide Bank signalled
recognition of our solutions in their Tier
One sector and highlights our strong value
proposition for this market. The ability to
integrate with operational subsystems and
provide high level executive information is a
major differentiator.
New clients include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Adelaide Bank
Bananacoast Community Credit Union
ESI Financial Services
Mondial Assistance
New England Credit Union
NLC
Silver Chef Limited

Utilities
The addition of TechnologyOne Works &
Assets to the solution suite has enhanced
our reputation and capability within
this market. TechnologyOne Property,
traditionally targeted towards Local
Government, is also helping us achieve
continued success in the airport sector.
New clients include:
•
•
•
•
•

Manukau Water
NT Airports
Qld Airports Ltd
Roaring 40’s Renewable Energy
Wannon Region Water Authority

Health & Community Services

Managed Services

TechnologyOne has a strong value
proposition for hospitals and other
community services such as aged care and
not-for-proﬁt organisations. In the past 12
months, TechnologyOne achieved a major
breakthrough in New Zealand winning a
contract with Hawkes Bay District Health
Board. This positions the organisation
for further growth in the New Zealand
healthcare sector as the market has
traditionally been dominated by a long term
incumbent. Further opportunities in this
area are expected to be capitalised on over
the next two years.

Managed Services deﬁnes those groups of
organisations in various industries that
co-ordinate or provide services. Key
sub-groups include IT, Property
Development, Mining, Engineering and
Corporate Management.

New clients include
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Australian Medical Council
Catholic Archdiocese of Sydney
Hawkes Bay District Health Board
Multicap
Relationships Australia
Returned & Services League of Australia
Royal Flying Doctors Service of Australia
(Queensland, Central and Western
Australia operations)
• The Australian Ballet
• The Cancer Council South Australia

provider of Student Management solutions
in the Australian marketplace.
In June 2006, TechnologyOne secured a
strategic win with Queensland University
of Technology against a multi-national
competitor. We expect signiﬁcant activity in
this sector in the 2006/07 ﬁnancial year.

New clients include:

New clients include:

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•

Amdel Victoria
Australian Pipeline Trust
AWPL Retail Solutions
Cutting Edge Post Pty Ltd
Duty Free Caribbean
Enhance Group
Ground Probe Pty Ltd
Hostworks Ltd
Jellinbah Resources Pty Ltd
Lane Cove Tunnel Corporation
Property Council of Australia
RACT
Spark Infrastructure
The Gandel Group Pty Ltd
Upstream Petroleum

Education
This ﬁnancial year has seen a dramatic
change in the market place for student
management solutions with a number
of universities coming out to tender or
signalling their intention to come to tender
in the coming months. This change is the
result of the failure of our competitors to
meet the changing needs of the market, and
positions TechnologyOne as the leading

New Zealand Education Institute
Queensland University of Technology
The University of the Sunshine Coast
University of Canberra

United Kingdom
TechnologyOne opened its ﬁrst United
Kingdom ofﬁce in March 2006 just outside
of London. We have been preparing for
our entry to the United Kingdom market
for a number of years and commenced
our marketing in the United Kingdom in
October 2005. As a result of this detailed
preparation we have had a high level of
early sales activity. TechnologyOne United
Kingdom now has ﬁve staff and we are
expecting to grow the team quickly over the
coming year.

“I’m looking forward to rolling out our
‘Awesome Software’ initiative by driving
improvements and evolving our Core
Enterprise Suite.”

PETER CAMERON
GENERAL MANAGER
CORE ENTERPRISE SUITE
2006 ANNUAL REPORT
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
Continued
We have kept our sales focus sharp and
our team is targeting TechnologyOne
Financials to a very small number of key
vertical markets in the United Kingdom.
The United Kingdom is a difﬁcult market
to penetrate due to the large number of
competitors and the innate conservative
nature of business, but the initial reaction to
the Ci release of TechnologyOne Financials
has been overwhelmingly positive. Our
ﬁrst engagement in the United Kingdom
commenced in June 2006 with the
implementation of the United Kingdom
subsidiary of an Australian customer.

Service Delivery
TechnologyOne’s Service Delivery Team has
excelled in delivering on the expectation
of our customers throughout the current
ﬁnancial year and we have introduced a new
‘Exceptional Customer Service’ initiative to
further improve our service to clients.

Implementation Services
TechnologyOne provides its clients with
complete implementation services, including
data conversion, implementation and
project management.
Key achievements for the 2006 ﬁnancial
year include:
• On time, on budget implementation for
the Whole of Samoan Government.
• Large scale implementation underway for
the Papua New Guinea Government.
• Secondment of Business Consultants
to major projects throughout Australia,
New Zealand and Malaysia to ensure
we continue to deliver the solution the
customers require on time and on budget.
• Continual improvements to
methodologies to deliver exceptional
customer service to customers.
• Provision of data conversion,
implementation and project management
through our Power of One business
model.
• Employment of specialised business
consultants with a strong background
in Works & Assets and HR & Payroll
to deliver exceptional implementation
service for TechnologyOne Works &
Assets and HR & Payroll.

14
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Customer Relationship Management

Product Service Delivery

TechnologyOne delivers ‘Exceptional
Customer Service’ through a dedicated
team of Customer Relationship Managers,
who work closely with existing customers
to manage their business requirements.
In the past ﬁnancial year, the Customer
Relationship Managers have been working
hard to migrate customers onto our new Ci
series for TechnologyOne Financials. The
reaction from our customers to date has
been very positive, with customers already
realising the beneﬁts such as the ability
to deploy information and functionality
to far more users than before, obtaining
greater organisational beneﬁt from the
TechnologyOne solution.

TechnologyOne’s ‘Exceptional Customer
Service’ initiative is being supported by our
Product Service Delivery team. This team
is charged with providing our business
consultants support through methodologies,
training and in the ﬁeld support. We have
grown this team over the past year to
provide additional resources as and where
required to assist all regions in delivery of
excellent customer service, and will continue
to grow this team in the coming year. In
particular, New Zealand, a rapidly growing
market, has beneﬁted from the introduction
of the Product Service Delivery team to
manage its ongoing growth.

A key initiative in the past year has been
the delivery of seminars for our existing
customers, providing information about our
products to a large number of customers in
a very effective manner. These seminars will
continue into next year with a focus on a
broad range of topics to provide assistance
to customers.
TechnologyOne’s Customer Relationship
Managers play a key role in generating
revenue from our customer base by up
selling modules, new solutions and services
to customers. In the past year, major wins
from within our customer base included
the sale of TechnologyOne HR & Payroll to
eight existing customers, Works & Assets to
six clients, and Budgeting to 21 customers.

Training and Growth
TechnologyOne has a continued demand
for consulting services and expect to grow
this side of the business in the following
year. TechnologyOne advanced its training
program in the last year for both internal
and external training. A dedicated training
consultant is working with the team to
deliver a range of programs to upskill staff
and customers.
We are also reviewing options for the
delivery of training courses, including the
trial of technology for remote training. This
will have a major impact on our ability to
provide training to customers and staff over
the longer term.

Support
All of TechnologyOne’s customers are given
access to multi-level support, including our
Support Centre, Customer Relationship
Managers and Business Consultants.
TechnologyOne’s Support Centre is available
to customers via web, email, or telephone.
The Support Centre is staffed by skilled
TechnologyOne personnel who have
either worked directly within the product
development teams or as TechnologyOne
Business Consultants.
We continued to grow the support team
in the past year with product specialists
who understand our customers’ business
requirements. Our Support One web
solution was also further developed to
provide a more comprehensive, and easy to
use solution for our customers.

EMPLOYER OF OPPORTUNITY
Our People
The key to TechnologyOne’s ongoing
evolution and success to date is the
remarkable people and wealth of talent that
the company employs.
In the past year, a revitalised values
statement ‘The TechOne Way’ was released,
epitomising the importance we place on
remarkable people, and their ability to
shape our future. Our people are our most
important and valuable asset, and it is their
skills, commitment and hard work that has
enabled us to meet the challenges that rapid
growth brings.
TechnologyOne’s continually evolving
organisational structure is lead by a:
• Management team that continues to
proﬁtably grow the company.
• Research and development team
delivering awesome software.
• Service delivery team providing
exceptional customer service.
• Corporate services team delivering
support to the organisation.
TechnologyOne has, and continues to
experience, a lower than industry average
employee turnover, based on our culture of
‘Employer of Opportunity’. Our initiatives
to provide opportunities, recruit and retain
remarkable people include:

• Being a market leader and building a
brand associated with success.
• Empowering staff to make a difference.
• Fostering a culture of teamwork and
innovation.
• A corporate commitment to world best
practice and high ﬁnancial rewards.
• Ongoing training and support.

Graduate Program
TechnologyOne believes it is important
to nurture the next generation of IT
leaders, and we have rolled out a graduate
recruitment program to give recent
graduates the opportunity to create worldclass software solutions. TechnologyOne
is one of only a few business software
developers in Australia creating solutions
from the ground up, giving graduates a
sought after opportunity to inﬂuence the
way in which our customer’s manage their
business.

In 2007, TechnologyOne will continue to
enhance its graduate recruitment program
with full year and half year intakes. The
company will also extend its program
to business consulting, targeting graduates
who specialise in accounting and
commerce, to hit the ground running and
provide the essential building blocks for our
consulting teams.
Other initiatives include support of
Queensland universities for work experience
and graduate intakes, and a series of lectures
at Queensland University of Technology
on TechnologyOne Financials to empower
students within the computer accounting
ﬁeld with knowledge and understanding of
enterprise business software solutions.

In the 2006 ﬁnancial year, we signiﬁcantly
extended our graduate recruitment program,
employing graduates across our entire
business. We have also begun recruiting
part-time staff who are currently studying
at university to foster a long-term program
for staff recruitment, and provide students
with workplace experience and real life
opportunities.

• Recruiting from within the organisation,
and providing a strong career path and
growth opportunities.

“As one of TechnologyOne’s newest employees,
I was attracted by the opportunity to work on
world-class software solutions and leading edge
technology. I can’t wait to play a key role in the
next stage of TechnologyOne’s evolution, rolling
out TechnologyOne Property on the Ci platform.”

KIMBERLEY YEE
GRADUATE PROGRAMMER
2006 ANNUAL REPORT
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INTEGRATED SOLUTION SUITE
TechnologyOne provides totally integrated enterprise business software solutions.
Each product in TechnologyOne’s solution suite stands alone as a best in class solution,
or can seamlessly join together to create a total enterprise solution for an organisation.
Our integrated enterprise suite incorporates:
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TechnologyOne Financials

TechnologyOne Financials delivers enterprise wide control and integration of ﬁnancial
information essential to strategic decision making and improving the bottom line. Through
its unique ﬁnancial architecture, rich functionality, powerful online enquiries, and versatile
reporting ability, the solution provides the ability to interpret accounting and ﬁnancial
information more efﬁciently than ever before.

TechnologyOne HR & Payroll

TechnologyOne HR & Payroll is a comprehensive solution for effective employee lifecycle
management. The solution provides deep integration and reporting, from full human
resource functionality to sophisticated payroll management and employee self service.

TechnologyOne Supply Chain

TechnologyOne Supply Chain is a fully integrated solution for internal requisitioning,
approvals, procurement, inventory control and replenishment. This provides organisations
complete control of their business operations and well as returning signiﬁcant cost savings
and efﬁciencies.

TechnologyOne Business Intelligence

TechnologyOne Business Intelligence delivers an ‘out of the box’ solution for organisations
looking for superior reporting and enquiry functionality. The solution delivers a big picture
view of their business across system boundaries with drill down functionality.

TechnologyOne Budgeting

TechnologyOne Budgeting allows organisations to manage their budget and analysis process
from budget creation through modelling, end-user entry, approvals and automated update
to the general ledger. The solution simpliﬁes the entire budgeting process to allow users to
focus on real analysis of the business and its cost drivers rather than being swamped with
the paperwork.

TechnologyOne Property

TechnologyOne Property is a fully integrated and ﬂexible solution which enables customers
to manage all aspects of their property, land, people and address information. All of the
information needed is located within one central and easily accessible location which
provides customers with complete control over their operations.

TechnologyOne Student Management

TechnologyOne Student Management empowers all stakeholders in an education institution
by providing a consistent and online, real time view of their information for use in making
effective business decisions. TechnologyOne provides a total solution that allows students,
academics, administrators, suppliers and partners to connect through one application.

TechnologyOne Works & Assets

TechnologyOne Works & Assets provides organisations with a totally integrated project
management, work order, asset maintenance, asset capitalisation, billing, timesheet and
reporting solution.

TechnologyOne Custom Software
Development

TechnologyOne’s core competency is the development of world class enterprise software
solutions for key vertical markets. However, we recognise that some organisations have a
unique requirement where an out of the box solution does not meet their requirements.
Our Project Services group have signiﬁcant experience developing unique applications, fully
integrated to our total solution suite for our customer’s speciﬁc requirements, or one-off
application developments for customers requiring large scale, purpose built applications.

2006 ANNUAL REPORT

TARGETED VERTICAL MARKETS
In the 2006 ﬁnancial year, TechnologyOne realigned its sales force to focus on seven
identiﬁed key vertical markets where we can provide a totally integrated solution to manage
an organisation’s core business requirements. Our value proposition and key strengths in
each of these markets are outlined below.
Government
The Government sector has been a long-term key market for TechnologyOne, and we are successful
in this market due to our excellent output and outcome reporting, project accounting, budgeting and
funds control. We are also recognised by international funding agencies, World Bank and AusAid, as one
of very few business software organisations capable of providing solutions to emerging or post conﬂict
organisations throughout the Asia Paciﬁc region.

Local Government
TechnologyOne is a dominant provider of integrated Local Government solutions with an impressive
track record in this sector. Our strengths lie in property, rating, people, budgeting, project accounting,
work orders, commitment accounting and funds control. TechnologyOne’s integrated Property solution
is incredibly successful as it allows authorities to store all their property, land, people and addresses
within one central and easily accessible location.

Financial Services
Organisations in the Financial Services sector have long suffered from the inability to report key ﬁnancial
and summary operational information. TechnologyOne’s integrated Financials and Business Intelligence
solutions provide Financial Services organisations with the ability to easily report on core ﬁnancial and
summary operational information to staff.

Education
TechnologyOne is a leading provider of Student Management and integrated enterprise solutions to
tertiary and higher education institutions in Australia. Our ability to develop long term relationships, our
agility and speed to market to respond to legislative changes, our new generation Connected Intelligence
series and the breadth and depth of our education solution suite delivered ‘out of the box’ are key
factors behind our success in this market.

Health & Community Services
For Health & Community Service providers, the ability to control costs and manage facilities is critical.
TechnologyOne presents hospitals, aged care facilities, charities and not-for-proﬁt providers with an
integrated enterprise solution that allows them to control costs and provide key stakeholders with
accurate ﬁnancial information.

Utilities
Organisations in the Utilities sector, such as ports and airports, water, gas and electricity authorities,
have sophisticated project accounting requirements which are well met with TechnologyOne’s
integrated Financials and Works & Asset solutions. Our proven integration to specialised systems in this
industry, such as container tracking, further supports our market position.

Managed Services
TechnologyOne has recognised the fast growing services sector, which has burgeoned as a result of
workforce shortage and need for more effective people or project management. TechnologyOne has
deﬁned this area as the Managed Services sector and recognise that these organisations require powerful
ﬁnancial, operational and analytical business solutions to effectively run their business. Organisations in
this sector, such as mining, IT, facilities management, memberships, property management and corporate
governance will beneﬁt from TechnologyOne’s integrated Financials and Works & Assets solutions.
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TARGETED VERTICAL MARKETS
Continued

TechnologyOne’s Integrated Solution Suite meets the needs of customers in each of our
seven key vertical markets. The table below outlines our Integrated Solution Suite and
matches the solutions to the requirements of our target markets.

Government

TechnologyOne
Financials

TechnologyOne
HR & Payroll

TechnologyOne
Supply Chain

TechnologyOne
Business Intelligence

TechnologyOne
Budgeting

TechnologyOne
Property

TechnologyOne
Student Management

TechnologyOne
Works & Assets
TechnologyOne
Custom Software
Development

18
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Local
Government

Financial
Services

Education

Health &
Community
Services

Utilities

Managed
Services

INVESTING IN THE COMMUNITY
TechnologyOne believes that it has a
responsibility to give back to the community
that supports its staff and their families. This
means having a strong set of values that
underpin the company’s everyday activities:
our attitudes to our customers, our attitudes
to our staff, our transparency, our high
ethical standards, as well as our community
work. It is this belief that underlines our
Community Works initiative, providing
much needed sponsorship, donations
and support to community-based and
educational organisations, and encouraging
our staff to become actively involved in
activities that contribute to the community.

We are setting up a program to encourage
shareholders to donate their dividend to
Children’s Hospitals Australia. Full details
about this program can be found on the
Investing in Hope website: http://www.
childrenshfa.com.au/go/will-you-be-ourhero/investing-in-hope

Investing in Hope

• Sponsorship of six children through
World Vision and one child through Plan
International.

TechnologyOne is committed to innovation
across its business. We are one of the ﬁrst
Australian publicly listed companies to
embrace a dividend donation program to
support charitable organisations, and hope
that our commitment to this program will
encourage other listed companies to follow
suit.
The Investing in Hope program supports
millions of Australian children and families,
through paediatric research, and developing
quicker diagnosis times, improved treatment
methods and cures for many serious
diseases.

Charitable Donations
TechnologyOne supports numerous
organisations with donations, including:
• Annual Christmas appeal amongst staff to
raise much needed funds for the Salvation
Army at a critical time of the year.

• Local charities supporting underprivileged
children, including the George Gregan
Foundation, Police Citizens Youth Club
and Lifestream Foundation.

Sponsorships

believes it has a responsibility to nurture
the next generation of IT leaders, and the
TechnologyOne BYTE Awards are key to
this program. In fact, we have employed a
TechnologyOne BYTE Award winner in our
Queensland Sales & Consulting team, whilst
she undertakes a degree in Bachelor of IT at
the University of Queensland.
We are also major sponsor of the
TechnologyOne Website Competition. The
initiative, managed by Epilepsy Queensland,
is designed to promote an understanding of
epilepsy to Queensland students.
Finally, TechnologyOne was major sponsor
of AEIOU’s Sing for Kids, an initiative to
raise awareness of autism and support for
AEIOU, an organisation delivering an early
intervention program for autistic children.

Environment
TechnologyOne proactively manages
its activities to ensure that it does not
negatively impact the environment in the
course of conducting its business.

TechnologyOne is major naming rights
sponsor of the TechnologyOne BYTE
(Building Youth Technology Excellence)
Awards, an Education Queensland initiative
to recognise technological excellence in
Queensland State Schools. TechnologyOne

“The Salvation Army has appreciated
TechnologyOne’s ongoing support since 1997.
As the company continues to evolve into an
international organisation, we are grateful
they share their success with underprivileged
members of their local community.”

MAJOR DEBBIE HINDLE
SALVATION ARMY
2006 ANNUAL REPORT
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The Board of Directors of Technology One Limited (TechnologyOne) (ABN 84 010 487 180) has pleasure in submitting its report in respect of the
ﬁnancial year ended 30 June 2006.

Directors
The names and details of the Directors in ofﬁce during or since the end of the ﬁnancial year are:
NAMES AND QUALIFICATIONS

EXPERIENCE AND SPECIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

Adrian Di Marco

Mr Di Marco founded TechnologyOne in 1987, after extensive experience in the software industry
in the area of large scale ﬁxed time and ﬁxed price software development projects to meet client
speciﬁc requirements. Mr Di Marco has over 25 years experience in the software industry. He has
been responsible for all operational aspects of TechnologyOne, as well as the strategic direction of
the company.

(EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN)

B Sc, FAICD
appointed 8 December 1999

Ron McLean
appointed 8 December 1999

John Mactaggart
(CHAIRMAN OF EXECUTIVE
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE)

FAICD
appointed 8 December 1999

Syd Larwill
B Com
appointed 8 December 1999

Kevin Blinco
(CHAIRMAN OF AUDIT COMMITTEE)

B Bus, FCA, ATI
appointed 1 April 2004

Richard Anstey
AICD, FAIM,
appointed 2 December 2005

Mr McLean has over 30 years experience in the software industry, having held senior positions in
companies in Australia and overseas, including the multi-national computer manufacturer NCR
Corporation. Mr McLean joined the Board as a non-executive Director in 1992, was appointed as a
General Manager in 1994, Chief Operating Ofﬁcer in 1999 and Chief Executive Ofﬁcer of Operations
in 2003. Mr McLean resigned as Chief Executive Ofﬁcer of Operations on 15 July 2004, and remains
a non-executive director.
Mr Mactaggart has extensive experience across many industries, including export of animal products,
food processing, industrial fasteners, manufacturing of building equipment and computer hardware
and software. Mr Mactaggart is a Director of a number of companies. Mr Mactaggart through JL
Mactaggart Holdings Pty Ltd is a founding shareholder of TechnologyOne. He has been a Fellow of
the Australian Institute of Company Directors since 1991.
Mr Larwill was a partner in the accountancy ﬁrms, Larwill and Larwill, Irish Young and Outhwaite,
Deloitte Haskins and Sells and was a Founding Director of Hart Larwill Pty Ltd. He has been a
Director and Company Secretary for a number of other companies. Mr Larwill has been involved as
a Director of TechnologyOne since 1992. He was formerly a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants and an Associate of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators for over
30 years.
Mr Blinco is the current Chairman and a Director of accounting ﬁrm Moore Stephens. His expertise
is broadly respected and acknowledged throughout the business community. As a reﬂection of this
he is the Director and/or Secretary of numerous organisations and the external ﬁnancial controller of
several large family owned businesses. He is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants and
Fellow of the Taxation Institute of Australia.
Mr Anstey has over 30 years experience in the information technology & telecommunications
industry and in associated investment banking roles. For the past 22 years he has been building and
managing his own companies. The ﬁrst, Tangent Group Pty Ltd, established a strong reputation for
the development of software and strategic management consultancy for the banking and ﬁnance
sector. After the sale of Tangent, he co-founded inQbator in 2000, an early stage investment group
focussed upon the technology telecommunications and life sciences sector. inQbator manages a
Federal Government backed seed fund and a portfolio of some 14 active companies across Australia.
In 2006, Mr Anstey continued his career in venture capital by co-founding iQ Capital Management
Pty Ltd, which manages iQ Fund 2. Mr Anstey is a member of the Australian Institute of Company
Directors, a Fellow of the Australian Institute of Management and a member of the Australian
Venture Capital Association.

COMPANY SECRETARY

EXPERIENCE AND SPECIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

David Orchard

Mr Orchard joined TechnologyOne in 1994 as the Financial Controller. This position was
re-assessed to Chief Financial Ofﬁcer on the company’s Australian Stock Exchange listing
in 1999. He became Company Secretary in 1995.

(COMPANY SECRETARY
AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER)

BCom, CA, ACIS

Unless indicated otherwise, all Directors held their position as a Director throughout the entire ﬁnancial year and up to the date of this report.
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Continued
Directors’ Interests
Relevant interests of the Directors in the shares of the company, as at date of this report are:
ORDINARY SHARES
A Di Marco (Masterbah Pty Ltd)

70,378,500

R McLean (RONMAC Investments Pty Ltd)

500,000

J Mactaggart (JL Mactaggart Holdings Pty Ltd)

75,902,500

S Larwill

200,000

K Blinco (Assembly Road Pty Ltd)

201,285

R Anstey

15,000

Refer to Note 23 for further information concerning Directors’ interests.

Directors’ Meetings
The number of meetings of the Board of Directors and of Board Committees during the year were:
BOARD OR COMMITTEE

NUMBER OF MEETINGS

Full Board

11

Audit

5

Executive Remuneration

1

Nomination

1

The attendance of Directors at meetings of the Board and its Committees were:
FULL BOARD
A Di Marco
R McLean

AUDIT

11

EXECUTIVE
REMUNERATION

NOMINATION

1

1

10 (11)

J Mactaggart

11

5

1

1

S Larwill

11

5

1

1

K Blinco

11

5

R Anstey

4(4)

Where a Director did not attend all meetings of the Board or relevant Committee, the number of meetings for which the Director was eligible to
attend is shown in brackets.
As at the date of this report, the company had an Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, which met ﬁve times during the year. The details
of the functions and memberships of the other Committees of the Board are presented in the Corporate Governance Statement.

22

2006 ANNUAL REPORT

Corporate Structure
Technology One Limited Group of Companies
As at 30 June 2006

Technology One Limited
100%

100%

100%

100%

Technology One
New Zealand Ltd

Technology One
Corporation SDN BHD

Technology One
UK Limited

Proclaim One
Software Pty Ltd

Principal Activities
The principal activity of Technology One Limited (the Company) during the ﬁnancial year was the development, marketing, sales, implementation and support of
fully integrated enterprise business software solutions, including:
• TechnologyOne Financials
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

TechnologyOne HR & Payroll
TechnologyOne Supply Chain
TechnologyOne Business Intelligence
TechnologyOne Budgeting
TechnologyOne Property
TechnologyOne Student Management
TechnologyOne Works & Assets

The Company also provides custom software development services for large scale, purpose built applications.

Results
The proﬁt of the consolidated entity for the ﬁnancial year was $12,314,000 after income tax.

Dividends
The following dividends of the company have been paid, declared or recommended since the end of the preceding ﬁnancial year:

ON ORDINARY SHARES $000
Final dividend (franked to 100%) for 2005 as recommended in last year’s report
Interim fully franked dividend for 2006 paid 24 March 2006
Final fully franked dividend for 2006 as recommended by the Directors

5,097
4,146
5,963
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Continued
Review of Operations
The highlights of the last 12 months are as follows:
•
•
•
•

Continued strong new business
Continued strong R&D program
Continued organisational changes
TechnologyOne United Kingdom

Continued Strong New Business
TechnologyOne’s current products continued to be very successful in winning substantial new business from our large multinational competitors.
Numerous deals were signed including high proﬁle organisations like the Government of Papua New Guinea, Adelaide Bank, Queensland Airports,
Workcover Queensland, Ministry of Justice (New Zealand) and Queensland University of Technology.

Continued Strong R&D Program
Research and Development (R&D) was a signiﬁcant and important investment by TechnologyOne in 2006. R&D expenditure was $12.7m, an increase of
$2.5m and representing 19% of revenue. R&D was across our extensive portfolio of enterprise applications. The Company continued world best practice
and fully expensed all R&D as incurred.

Strategic Initiatives in R&D
TechnologyOne’s focus continues to be to bring to the market an integrated enterprise software application with ‘out of the box’ deep functionality based
on the very latest technology and software design concepts. Our new Connected Intelligence (Ci) platform is critical to delivering on this promise and will
allow us to achieve a signiﬁcant competitive advantage over our competitors.
As such the major focus across all our R&D teams has been the continued development of our Ci suite of applications. It has been a signiﬁcant ﬁnancial
commitment by the Company to progressively move all our products across to our new and exciting Ci platform. With the success of our ﬁrst two
products, TechnologyOne Financials Ci and TechnologyOne Works & Assets Ci, the Company has now accelerated the move of the remaining products,
with progressive releases over the 2006 and 2007 calendar years for the following:
•
•
•
•

TechnologyOne Student Management
TechnologyOne Property
TechnologyOne HR & Payroll
TechnologyOne Supply Chain

TechnologyOne Financials Ci continued to gain traction, with all new deals taking this solution. There are now over 152 sites committed to this exciting
new product, of which 125 sites are now live. We continued to enhance our Core Enterprise Suite with R11.3 now nearing completion.
The Company has also increased R&D resources to accelerate new modules and features for TechnologyOne Works & Assets and TechnologyOne Business
Intelligence.
Early stage R&D has also continued on a proposed new product, TechnologyOne Customer Relationship Management (CRM). The feasibility/proof of
concept is expected to be completed by mid 2007 calendar year.
Of particular importance was the availability of Release 11.2 of TechnologyOne Financials, which contains the substantial enhancements required for our
entry into the very large and strategically important United Kingdom market.
Over the next 12 to 24 months extensive enhancements are planned across all products, which will substantially increase their functionality and feature
set. New modules are also planned for both TechnologyOne Student Management and TechnologyOne Property to further extend the depth and breadth
of these products.

Continued Organisational Changes
Over the last 12 months we have continued to evolve our organisation to make it more responsive and internationally ready.
Key initiatives:
• ’Awesome Software’ initiative – move towards smaller and empowered ‘domain teams’ to substantially increase ownership, commitment and
innovation within R&D.
• ‘Exceptional Customer Service’ initiative – aligning all of consulting within the Asia Paciﬁc under one Operating Ofﬁcer.
• ‘Exceptional Customers Sales’ initiative – aligning sales and marketing across the Asia Paciﬁc under one Operating Ofﬁcer, and identifying seven key
verticals that TechnologyOne is now committed to achieve a dominant position in.
• Greater focus onto our Asian operation, with the Asian region now under this proven executive team, to create the Australia, Asia & New Zealand
(AANZ) region.
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TechnologyOne United Kingdom
TechnologyOne opened its ﬁrst European Ofﬁce in the United Kingdom, at Maidenhead in March 2006. A country manager with an exceptional track
record was appointed and key Australian staff relocated to this new ofﬁce to ensure the transfer of knowledge, skill and culture to the United Kingdom.
The ﬁrst product to be introduced to the United Kingdom is TechnologyOne Financials. We have also introduced an early adopter program to attempt
to fast track our ﬁrst few customers in this market. Initial feedback has been very positive and we have quickly developed a good quality pipeline of
opportunities.

Statement of Cash Flows
The signiﬁcant variation between net proﬁt after tax (NPAT) ($12.3m) and operating cash ﬂows ($8.6m) is due to the following factors:
• Signiﬁcant billings in June, which will not be collected until August.
• Deferred invoicing terms associated with two major contracts.
• Additional tax beneﬁt associated with Tax Consolidation of approximately $0.5m, which was credited to NPAT.

Consolidated Proﬁt v Parent Entity Proﬁt
The parent entity proﬁt ($14.4m), which is higher than the consolidated proﬁt ($12.3m) is mainly due to a dividend that was paid by Proclaim Software
Pty Ltd to Technology One Limited. This transaction was eliminated on consolidation.

Evolving Our Strategy
Our strategy over the next 24 months is to be highly focused in our endeavours. In particular we will focus on seven vertical markets and re-align our
organisation to achieve dominance in these sectors. This will see sales, marketing, consulting, R&D and acquisition/partnerships focused on increasing our
success in these markets.
Other major initiatives include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Continue to invest strongly in the United Kingdom over the next few years.
Connected Intelligence is providing the company with strong leadership over competitors and contributing to continued success in the Tier One market.
Investment in HR & Payroll to ensure it meets the needs of our customers.
Initiatives to ensure we are the ‘last man standing’ in the local government market.
The higher education market is an important growth market for us over the forthcoming years and we are pro-actively building the infrastructure we
need to meet the challenges associated with signiﬁcant growth.
Ofﬁcial release of new Business Intelligence product to provide a powerful and uniﬁed Business Intelligence across all our products, that will work ‘out of
the box’.
Continue to aggressively expand TechnologyOne Works & Assets solution.
Expansion within existing customer base.
Continued evolution of our organisation.
Continuing to review and evolve our long term strategy for our Supply Chain solution and Project Services business.

Outlook
In the next 12 months we expect continuing strong growth from our Core Enterprise Suite. In particular, there are continuing strong opportunities in
New Zealand, as well as in our two biggest states – New South Wales and Victoria. We also see strong growth in the higher education market, as more
universities embrace our solutions. Over this time we will continue to invest strongly in the following areas:
•
•
•
•

R&D
United Kingdom
Asia
Extending our management team

The challenges associated with continuing rapid growth will need to be pro-actively managed, as well as carefully managing the investment in our United
Kingdom and Asian operations, our ongoing aggressive R&D program and increasing expansion of our teams of people to meet the demands for our
products.
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Long Term
TechnologyOne has built a very strong business in providing world class enterprise applications. Our strategy has been to continue to expand the range of
our enterprise applications and provide a compelling proposition to our potential customers based on functionality, integration, product breadth and depth,
usability and user experience and our unique Power of One business model.
Coupled with our continued aggressive R&D program to further expand the breadth and depth of our products, our new generation Connected Intelligence
series of products and continued geographical expansion into new markets such as the United Kingdom, this provides us with signiﬁcant opportunities for
long term and continued growth for TechnologyOne.
The Company expects to see long term opportunities to further expand the geographies we operate in, possibly to the USA and/or China.

Dividend Increased
The Board remains committed to the careful management of our capital base to ensure that capital, where appropriate, is returned to our shareholders,
while still allowing us to grow our business. The dividend for the year has been once again increased, this year by 10% to 3.41 cents fully franked, making
this the sixth consecutive year of increasing dividends. Based on the share price as at 11 August 2006 of 68 cents, this represents a fully franked dividend
yield of 5%.

Capital Buy–Back
TechnologyOne has always taken a very controlled approach to the issue of options, to minimise the dilutionary impact on existing shareholders. This year
we have continued with the capital buy–back program, which is aimed at managing the dilutionary effect that options have on existing shareholders, as
they are exercised.

Signiﬁcant Changes in the State of Affairs
There were no signiﬁcant changes in the state of affairs of the Company throughout the year.

Signiﬁcant Events after Year End
The Company will pay a fully franked ﬁnal dividend on 22 September 2006 of $5,962,851.
One of the company’s subsidiaries, Proclaim Software Pty Ltd, is in the process of being wound up, by way of Members’ Voluntary Liquidation. This will
be completed by 7 October 2006. The operations of Proclaim Software Pty Ltd have been transferred to the parent entity and the Proclaim One product
(TechnologyOne Property) will continue to be offered by the Company. The wind up of Proclaim is being completed for administrative reasons only.

Shares and Options
Details of shares and options held by directors are set out in Note 23 of the ﬁnancial statements and form part of this report. Details of options issued to
employees are set out in Note 17 of the ﬁnancial statements and form part of this report.
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Remuneration Report
Details of remuneration provided to Directors and to the Key Management Personnel are as follows:

BASE
SALARY
$

PERFORMANCE
DIRECTORS’
RELATED
FEE
BONUS**
$
$

SUPERANNUATION
$

LONG TERM
EMOLUMENTS
RETIREMENT
OPTIONS
BENIFITS
GRANTED*
$
$

TOTAL
$

DIRECTORS
A Di Marco (Executive)
2006
2005

348,469
338,412

28,925
27,938

257,260
246,586

27,615
26,711

—
—

—
—

662,269
639,647

R McLean (Executive until 15 July 2004)
2006
—
2005
26,869

28,925
27,938

—
—

—
73,972

—
—

—
—

28,925
128,779

J Mactaggart (Non-executive)
2006
2005

—
—

28,925
27,938

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

28,925
27,938

S Larwill (Non-executive)
2006
2005

—
—

28,925
27,938

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

28,925
27,938

K Blinco (Non-executive)
2006
2005

—
—

28,925
27,938

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

28,925
27,938

17,208
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

17,208
—

161,833
139,690

257,260
246,586

27,615
100,683

—
—

—
—

795,177
852,240

—
—

251,595
219,256

16,120
15,313

—
—

26,304
12,459

473,124
417,164

M Culverson (Operating Ofﬁcer – Professional Services)
2006
160,168
2005
153,964

—
—

136,875
136,470

14,416
13,857

—
—

22,671
10,623

334,130
314,914

R Phare (Operating Ofﬁcer – Sales and Marketing)
2006
149,082
2005
122,401

—
—

167,372
131,148

13,418
11,016

—
—

13,457
6,199

343,329
270,764

P Cameron (Operating Ofﬁcer – Project Services)***
2006
48,134
2005
141,743

—
—

28,899
84,814

4,332
12,757

—
—

5,522
7,852

86,887
247,166

D Orchard (Chief Financial Ofﬁcer and Company Secretary)
2006
113,277
2005
104,842

—
—

—
—

10,196
9,436

—
—

—
—

123,473
114,278

584,741
571,688

58,482
62,379

—
—

67,954
37,133

1,360,943
1,364,286

R Anstey (Non-executive) appointed 2 December 2005
2006
—
2005
—

TOTAL REMUNERATION: DIRECTORS
2006
2005

348,469
365,281

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
R Down (Operating Ofﬁcer – New Business Development)
2006
2005

179,105
170,136

TOTAL REMUNERATION: KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
2006
2005

649,766
693,086

—
—

The percentage of remuneration comprising options was: R Down 5.6%, M Culverson 6.8%, R Phare 3.9%, P Cameron 6.4%.

2006 ANNUAL REPORT

27

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Continued
Remuneration Report continued
*

The value of options granted as part of remuneration are estimates only. The estimates are based on the degree of probability of future performance
hurdles being met, combined with the use of the binomial option pricing model.

**

The objective of the Bonus program is to link the achievement of the Company’s proﬁt target with the remuneration received by the executives
charged with meeting those targets in the current ﬁnancial year. On this basis all incentives are short term. The incentive component of the
executives’ remuneration ranges between 33 and 54% of their total remuneration. This relatively large component is evidence of the Company’s
requirement for executives to perform well, in order to attain their target remuneration. The incentive is based on the relevant division’s, for each
executive, net proﬁt before tax (NPBT) ﬁgure. NPBT has been chosen as it is the key indicator of performance. It is calculated in accordance with
statutory reporting requirements.

*** Peter Cameron ceased to hold the position of Operating Ofﬁcer – Project Services from 10 October 2005. The 2006 remuneration in the table on the
previous page is only for the period 1 July to 10 October 2005.

Remuneration Practices
The Executive Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of the company is responsible for determining and reviewing compensation
arrangements for the Executive Chairman (EC) and the Key Management Personnel (executives). The remuneration of the Directors is approved at an
Annual General Meeting of the shareholders.
The company’s constitution and the ASX listing rules specify that the aggregate remuneration of non-executive directors shall be determined from time
to time by a general meeting. An amount not exceeding the amount determined is then divided between the directors as agreed. The latest determination
was in 1999, at the time of the company’s ASX listing when shareholders approved an aggregate remuneration of $300,000 per year. In the 2006 year,
directors’ fees of $161,833 were paid. No additional fees are paid for each board committee on which a director sits.
In considering the remuneration to be paid to executives, the following principles are applied:
• The Company should provide the packages needed to attract, retain and motivate highly talented and experienced executives.
• The Company should judge where to position itself relative to other companies. This involves being aware of comparable companies’ pay, but to
exercise caution.
• The Company should be sensitive to the wider scene, especially with regard to salary increases.
• Performance related elements should form a signiﬁcant proportion of the package, should align interests with those of shareholders and should provide
keen incentives.
• The performance of the Company depends upon the quality of its directors and executives. To prosper, the Company must attract, motivate and retain
highly skilled directors and executives.
• Lastly the Company must take in speciﬁc and unique conditions that may apply in individual circumstances in order to attract and retain the right
executive team in the long term.
The Company aims to reward executives with a level and mix of remuneration commensurate with their position and responsibilities within the Company
and so as to:
•
•
•
•

Reward executives for Company, business unit and individual performance against targets.
Align the interests of executives with those of shareholders.
Link reward with the strategic goals and performance of the Company.
Ensure total remuneration is competitive by market standards.

Remuneration consists of the following key elements:
• Fixed remuneration
• Incentive component (performance related bonus)
• Long term incentive component (options)

Fixed Remuneration
The level of ﬁxed remuneration is set so as to provide a base level of remuneration which is both appropriate to the position and is competitive in the
market. Executives are given the opportunity to receive their ﬁxed (primary) remuneration in a variety of forms including cash and fringe beneﬁts such as
motor vehicles.

Incentive Component
The objective of the incentive program is to link the achievement of the Company’s proﬁt target with the remuneration received by the executives charged
with meeting those targets. The incentive component of the executives’ remuneration ranges between 33 and 54% of their total remuneration. This
relatively large component is evidence of the Company’s requirement for executives to perform well, in order to attain their target remuneration.
The incentive is based on the relevant division’s, for each executive, NPBT ﬁgure. NPBT has been chosen as it is the key indicator of performance. It is
calculated in accordance with statutory reporting requirements.
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Long Term Incentives
The objective of having long term incentives for executives is to reward executives in a manner which aligns this element of remuneration with the
Company’s interests. By having an equity interest in the company, it aligns the executives’ actions with the interests of shareholders. The executives must
meet continued service conditions in order to exercise these options. The options become exercisable over ﬁve separate tranches, commencing in July 2007.
Share options are granted to executives at the discretion of the EC based on the option plan approved by the Board. The exercise price of the options is set
based on future expected share price movements. The options vest if and when the executive satisﬁes the period of service contained in each option grant.
The contractual life of each option varies between two and ﬁve years. There are no cash settlement alternatives.

Company Performance
The graph below shows the performance of the Company (as measured by the Company’s NPBT) and the comparison of the Company’s NPBT with its
earnings per share (EPS) and dividends per share (DPS) over the last ﬁve years.
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Technology One Limited - EPS, DPS and NPBT

EPS
DPS
NPBT

2006

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

$0.47

$0.41

$0.56

$0.52

$0.68

Employment Contracts
The Executive Chairman, Mr Di Marco, is employed under contract. The current employment contract commenced on 1 December 1999 and continues
until terminated in accordance with the agreement. Under the terms of the present contract:
• Mr Di Marco may resign from his position and thus terminate this contract by giving not less than three months written notice.
• The company may terminate this employment agreement by either providing three months written notice or by paying the appropriate proportion of
the termination remuneration package in lieu thereof.
All other executives are employed on a continuing basis.
Apart from termination beneﬁts which accrue under statute, or mentioned above (such as unpaid annual leave, long service leave), there are no retirement
beneﬁts for executive directors and executives.
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Continued
Indemniﬁcation of Ofﬁcers
Insurance and indemnity arrangements established in the previous year concerning ofﬁcers of the company were renewed or continued
during 2006.
An indemnity agreement has been entered into between TechnologyOne and each of the directors of the company named earlier in this report and with
each full-time executive ofﬁcer and secretary of the company. Under the agreement, the company has indemniﬁed those ofﬁcers against any claim or for any
expenses or costs which may arise as a result of work performed in their respective capacities. There is a limit of $20,000,000 for any one claim.
TechnologyOne paid an insurance premium in respect of a contract insuring each of the directors of the company named earlier in this report and each
full-time executive ofﬁcer and secretary of the company, against all liabilities and expenses arising as a result of work performed in their respective capacities,
to the extent permitted by law.

Rounding of Amounts
The company is a company of the kind speciﬁed in Australian Securities and Investment Commission Class Order 98/0100. In accordance with
that class order, amounts in the Financial Statements and the Directors’ Report have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars unless
speciﬁcally stated to be otherwise.

Auditor’s Independence Declaration to the Directors
The Directors received a declaration from the company’s auditor, Ernst & Young. It is included at the end of the Financial Statements.

Non-Audit Services
Non-audit services provided by the company’s auditor, Ernst & Young, in the current and prior ﬁnancial year included taxation and statutory
compliance assistance in Australia, New Zealand and Malaysia. The directors are satisﬁed that the provision of non-audit services is compatible
with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the Corporations Act. Fees for these services were:

2006

Consolidated
2005

2006

2005

Other assurance services

48,802

37,120

48,802

37,120

Compliance services – taxation and statutory

42,833

33,653

17,693

16,370

Taxation advice

40,682

28,741

2,500

1,480

132,317

99,514

68,995

54,970

This report has been made in accordance with a resolution of directors.

Adrian Di Marco
Executive Chairman

Brisbane
25 August 2006
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
The Board of Directors of the company is responsible for its corporate governance. The Board guides and monitors the business and affairs of the company
on behalf of the shareholders by whom they are elected and to whom they are accountable.
The Directors have the authority to delegate any of their powers to committees consisting of such directors and external consultants, as the directors think
ﬁt. The Board has established an Audit Committee, an Executive Remuneration Committee and a Nominations Committee.
The format of the Corporate Governance Statement is in accordance with the Australian Stock Exchange Corporate Governance Council’s ‘Principles of Good
Corporate Governance and Best Practice Recommendations’. In accordance with the Council’s recommendations, the Corporate Governance Statement
must now contain certain speciﬁc information and must disclose the extent to which the company has followed the guidelines during the period.
TechnologyOne’s corporate governance practices were in place throughout the year ended 30 June 2006. As noted below, there are some recommendations
with which the company has not complied. These are at the end of the statement. Apart from these, the company has complied with all of the principles.
The Directors have established guidelines for the operation of the Board. Set out below are the company’s main corporate governance practices.
Unless otherwise stated, these practices were in place throughout the ﬁnancial year.
The Corporate Governance Statement is available on the company’s internet site:
www.TechnologyOneCorp.com under the ‘Investor Relations’ area.

Board of Directors and its Committees
Board of Directors
The Directors are:
Adrian Di Marco
Ronald McLean
John Dugald Mactaggart
Sydney John Alfred Larwill
Kevin Phillip Blinco
Richard Charles Anstey

Executive Chairman (and Chief Executive Ofﬁcer) – major shareholder
Non-executive Director – ex Chief Executive Ofﬁcer of Operations
Non-executive Director – major shareholder
Non-executive Director – independent
Non-executive Director – independent
Non-executive Director – independent

The Board of Directors operates in accordance with the following broad principles:
• The Board should comprise at least three members, but no more than 10. The current Board membership is six. The Board may increase the number of
Directors where it is felt that additional expertise in speciﬁc areas is required.
• The Board should be comprised of Directors with an appropriate range of qualiﬁcations, expertise and experience.
• The Board shall meet regularly as required and have available all necessary information to participate in an informed discussion of agenda items.
• The Directors are entitled to be paid expenses incurred in connection with the execution of their duties as Directors. Each Director is therefore able to
seek independent professional advice at the company’s expense, where it is in connection with their duties and responsibilities as Directors. The company
policy is that a Director wishing to seek independent legal advice should advise the Board, or if this is not possible the Chairman, at least 48 hours before
doing so.

Appointment of Directors
If a vacancy exists, or where the Board considers it will beneﬁt from the appointment of a new Director with particular skills, the Board will interview the
candidates. Potential candidates will be identiﬁed by the Board although the Board will be entitled to seek the advice of an external consultant. The Board
will then appoint the most suitable candidate, who upon acceptance will hold ofﬁce until the next Annual General Meeting, where the appointee must retire
and is entitled to stand for re-election.

Audit Committee
The Board has established an Audit Committee. The Committee is comprised of:
K Blinco (Chairman)
S Larwill
J Mactaggart
The role of the Committee is to:
• Receive and review reports from the external auditor.
• Ensure that systems of internal control are functioning effectively and economically and that these systems and practices contribute to their achievement
of the company’s corporate objectives.
• Direct follow-up action where considered necessary.
• Relate any matters of concern to the accountable authority.
• The Committee reviews the performance of the external auditor on an annual basis.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
Continued
Executive Remuneration Committee
The Board has established an Executive Remuneration Committee. The Committee meets annually.
The Committee is comprised of:
J Mactaggart (Chairman)
A Di Marco
S Larwill
The terms of reference of the committee are to:
• Advise the Board with regard to the company’s broad policy for executive remuneration.
• Determine, on behalf of the Board, the individual remuneration packages for each Executive Director.
• Give the Executive Directors encouragement to enhance the company’s performance and to ensure that they are fairly, but responsibly, rewarded for
their individual contribution.
Non-executive directors’ remuneration is determined by the Board within the aggregate amount per annum which may be paid in directors’ fees.

Ethical Standards
All directors, managers and employees are expected to act with the utmost integrity and objectivity, striving at all times to enhance the reputation and
performance of the company.

Shareholders’ Role
The Board of Directors aims to ensure that shareholders are informed of all major developments affecting the company’s state of affairs. The information
is communicated to shareholders by the:
• Annual Report being distributed to all shareholders. The Board ensures the Annual Report contains all relevant information about the operations of the
company during the ﬁnancial year, together with details of future developments and other disclosures required under the Corporations Act 2001.
• Half Year Results Report distributed to all shareholders.
• Disclosures forwarded to the Australian Stock Exchange under the company’s continuous disclosure obligations.

Non-Compliance with ASX Corporate Governance Guidelines
The Board of TechnologyOne believes in working to the highest standards of Corporate Governance. Notwithstanding this, the Board believes it is
important to recognise there is not a ‘one size ﬁts all’ to good Corporate Governance, and that it is important to consider the size of the company, the
industry it operates within, the corporate history and the company’s inherent strengths.
The ASX Corporate Governance Council has recognised this fact, and has allowed companies to explain where they do not comply with the Principles of
Good Corporate Governance and Best Practice Recommendations.
The company has complied with the majority of the ASX recommendations. The Board believes the areas of non-conformance shown below will not
impact the company’s ability to meet the highest standards of Corporate Governance and will at the same time allow the company to capitalise on its
inherent strengths.
This section explains those areas of non-compliance.

Majority of Independent Directors (Refer ASX Corporate Guidelines – Recommendation 2.1)
As a smaller market capitalisation company, it is important that TechnologyOne has a Board of an appropriate size. The Board believes that six Directors
are appropriate for the company at its current size and that all existing Directors have the necessary skills and industry knowledge. To add additional
independent Directors at this stage would increase the Board’s size beyond what is currently regarded as appropriate and would unnecessarily increase
costs. As the company continues to grow, the number of Directors will be increased and the Board has committed that additional Directors will be
Independent Directors.

32

2006 ANNUAL REPORT

Independent Chairman (Refer ASX Corporate Guidelines – Recommendation 2.2)
The Board is of the opinion it should maximise the vision, skills and industry knowledge of the company’s founder and major shareholder to continue to
lead the company forward. The Board believes Mr Di Marco is the best candidate to clearly communicate the company’s vision, strategy and to set market
expectations. To this end it is seen as appropriate that Mr Di Marco should remain as Executive Chairman of the company. There is no empirical evidence
to support the preference of an Independent Chairman.

Separation of Chairman and CEO Roles (Refer ASX Corporate Guidelines – Recommendation 2.3)
The company’s Chief Executive Ofﬁcer, is also the company’s Executive Chairman. There are three Operating Ofﬁcers who are responsible for the day to
day operations in each region, who report to the Executive Chairman. The Board believes this provides the necessary balance required.

Structure of the Remuneration Committee (Refer ASX Corporate Guidelines – Recommendation 9.2)
The TechnologyOne Remuneration Committee meets the following stated requirements:
• Not chaired by the Chairman of the Board.
• At least three members.
• Majority of Non-Executive Directors.
The majority of the Committee are not Independent Directors and the Chairman is not an Independent Director. This is as a result of the size of the Board,
which is deemed appropriate for a company of TechnologyOne’s size. As the company grows and extends the Board to include additional Independent
Directors, this matter will be addressed.
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INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006

Note

2006
$000

CONSOLIDATED
2005
$000

2006
$000

2005
$000

2
2

65,209
1,276
66,485

53,739
1,426
55,165

58,512
6,893
65,405

48,088
3,393
51,481

Sales and marketing expense
Occupancy expense
Administration expense
Product distribution and servicing expense
Other expense
Finance expense
Equity based compensation expense
Proﬁt from continuing activities before research
and development expense

(8,338)
(1,234)
(11,554)
(15,076)
(1,189)
(83)
(79)

(5,768)
(1,170)
(9,071)
(13,410)
(922)
(122)
(53)

(8,495)
(1,018)
(10,534)
(13,469)
(1,052)
(83)
(79)

(5,038)
(990)
(8,451)
(12,210)
(804)
(71)
(53)

28,932

24,649

30,675

23,864

Research and development expense

(12,675)

(10,220)

(12,713)

(10,194)

PROFIT FROM CONTINUING ACTIVITIES
BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE

16,257

14,429

17,962

13,670

(3,943)

(3,832)

(3,592)

(3,713)

12,314

10,597

14,370

9,957

4.12
4.10
3.41

3.54
3.53
3.10

Sales revenue
Other revenue
Total operating revenue

Income tax expense attributable
to continuing activities

3

NET PROFIT
Basic Earnings Per Share (cents per share)
Diluted Earnings Per Share (cents per share)
Dividend Per Share (cents per share)

21
21

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this Income Statement.
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PARENT

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 30 JUNE 2006

Note

2006
$000

CONSOLIDATED
2005
$000

2006
$000

2005
$000

5

19,336
2,943
11,477
4,887
1,165

23,623
2,000
9,933
1,719
574

17,438
2,943
10,309
3,974
3,133

22,801
2,000
8,172
1,287
871

39,808

37,849

37,797

35,131

2,686
9,627
—
1,975

2,166
9,655
—
1,206

2,566
9,627
—
1,937

2,142
191
12,173
1,206

Total Non-Current Assets

14,288

13,027

14,130

15,712

TOTAL ASSETS

54,096

50,876

51,927

50,843

4,562
3,087
—
3,586
449

3,775
2,616
1,010
3,119
415

4,144
2,987
—
3,556
449

7,415
2,524
1,283
3,107
415

11,684

10,935

11,136

14,744

714
773
1,669
—

485
550
532
46

714
773
1,336
—

485
550
476
46

3,156

1,613

2,823

1,557

TOTAL LIABILITIES

14,840

12,548

13,959

16,301

NET ASSETS

39,256

38,328

37,968

34,542

22,981
5,614
10,661

24,827
5,045
8,456

22,981
6,161
8,826

24,827
5,150
4,565

39,256

38,328

37,968

34,542

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash assets
Investments available for sale
Receivables
Earned and unbilled revenue
Other

6
7

Total Current Assets
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets and goodwill
Other ﬁnancial assets
Deferred income tax asset

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables
Provisions
Income tax payable
Unearned revenue
Interest bearing liabilities

8
9
10
11

12
13

14

Total Current Liabilities
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provisions
Interest bearing liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilities
Other

15
14
16

Total Non-Current Liabilities

EQUITY
Contributed equity
Reserves
Retained earnings

17
18

TOTAL EQUITY

PARENT

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this Balance Sheet.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006

2006
$000

CONSOLIDATED
2005
$000

62,653
(50,307)
1,228
(4,820)
34
(82)
(93)
8,613

53,890
(40,465)
1,296
(3,770)
283
(122)
(51)
11,061

53,829
(42,705)
1,228
(4,811)
48
(82)
(86)
7,421

48,731
(34,188)
1,227
(2,479)
152
(71)
(51)
13,321

(979)
(878)
46
(1,811)

(506)
(1,000)
4
(1,502)

(863)
(878)
46
(1,695)

(506)
(1,000)
4
(1,502)

Cash ﬂows from ﬁnancing activities
Proceeds from conversion of share options
Payments for share buy-back
Dividends paid
Net ﬁnancing cash ﬂows

251
(2,097)
(9,243)
(11,089)

502
(320)
(8,971)
(8,789)

251
(2,097)
(9,243)
(11,089)

502
(320)
(8,971)
(8,789)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held
Cash at the beginning of the ﬁnancial year

(4,287)
23,623

770
22,853

(5,363)
22,801

3,030
19,771

19,336

23,623

17,438

22,801

Note

Cash ﬂows from operating activities
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers and employees
Interest received
Income taxes paid
Other revenue
Interest and other costs of ﬁnance paid
GST paid on plant and equipment acquisitions
Net operating cash ﬂows

5 (b)

Cash ﬂows from investing activities
Payments for plant and equipment
Purchase of ﬁnancial assets – listed securities
Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment
Net investing cash ﬂows

Cash at the end of the ﬁnancial year

5 (a)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this Statement of Cash Flows.
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PARENT
2006
$000

2005
$000

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2005
Reserves

CONSOLIDATED
At 1 July 2004
Currency translation differences
Total income and expense for the year
recognised directly in equity
Net proﬁt for the year
Total income/(expense) for the year
Transfer to dividend reserve
Dividend paid
Exercise of share options
Share buy-back
Cost of equity based compensation
At 30 June 2005

Share
Capital
$000

Retained
Earnings
$000

Dividend
$000

FOREX
$000

Share
Option
$000

24,645
—

7,148
—

4,779
—

—
(105)

—
—

36,572
(105)

—
—
—
—
—
502
(320)
—
24,827

—
10,597
10,597
(9,289)
—
—
—
—
8,456

—
—
—
9,289
(8,971)
—
—
—
5,097

(105)
—
(105)
—
—
—
—
—
(105)

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
53
53

(105)
10,597
10,492
—
(8,971)
502
(320)
53
38,328

24,645
—
—
—
—
502
(320)
—
24,827

3,897
9,957
9,957
(9,289)
—
—
—
—
4,565

4,779
—
—
9,289
(8,971)
—
—
—
5,097

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
53
53

33,321
9,957
9,957
—
(8,971)
502
(320)
53
34,542

Total
$000

PARENT
At 1 July 2004
Net proﬁt for the year
Total income/(expense) for the year
Transfer to dividend reserve
Dividend paid
Exercise of share options
Share buy-back
Cost of equity based compensation
At 30 June 2005

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this Statement of Changes in Equity.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2006
Reserves

CONSOLIDATED
At 1 July 2005
Fair value adjustment of investments
Net gains on available-for-sale ﬁnancial assets
Currency translation differences
Total income and expense for the year
recognised directly in equity
Net proﬁt for the year
Total income/(expense) for the year
Transfer to dividend reserve
Dividend paid
Exercise of share options
Share buy-back
Cost of equity based compensation
At 30 June 2006
PARENT
At 1 July 2005
Fair value adjustment of investments
Net gains on available-for-sale ﬁnancial assets
Total income and expense for the year
recognised directly in equity
Net proﬁt for the year
Total income/(expense) for the year
Transfer to dividend reserve
Dividend paid
Exercise of share options
Share buy-back
Cost of equity based compensation
At 30 June 2006

Share
Capital
$000

Retained
Earnings
$000

Dividend
$000

24,827
—
—
—

8,456
—
—
—

5,097
—
—
—

(105)
—
—
(442)

53
—
—
—

—
27
39
—

38,328
27
39
(442)

—
—
—
—
—
251
(2,097)
—
22,981

—
12,314
12,314
(10,109)
—
—
—
—
10,661

—
—
—
10,109
(9,243)
—
—
—
5,963

(442)
—
(442)
—
—
—
—
—
(547)

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
79
132

66
—
66
—
—
—
—
—
66

(376)
12,314
11,938
—
(9,243)
251
(2,097)
79
39,256

24,827
—
—

4,565
—
—

5,097
—
—

—
—
—

53
—
—

—
27
39

34,542
27
39

—
—
—
—
—
251
(2,097)
—
22,981

—
14,370
14,370
(10,109)
—
—
—
—
8,826

—
—
—
10,109
(9,243)
—
—
—
5,963

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
79
132

66
—
66
—
—
—
—
—
66

66
14,370
14,436
—
(9,243)
251
(2,097)
79
37,968

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this Statement of Changes in Equity.
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FOREX
$000

Share Investment
Option Revaluation
$000
$000

Total
$000

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a)

Basis of Preparation

The ﬁnancial report is a general purpose ﬁnancial report which has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and
Australian Accounting Standards.
The ﬁnancial report of Technology One Limited (the Company) for the year ended 30 June 2006 was authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of
the directors on 25 August 2006.
The ﬁnancial report has been prepared on the basis of historic costs, except for available-for-sale investments, which have been measured at fair value.
The ﬁnancial report is presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($000) unless otherwise stated under the
option available to the Company under class order 98/0100. The Company is an entity to which the class order applies.

b)

Statement of Compliance

The ﬁnancial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards, which include Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards
(AIFRS). Compliance with AIFRS ensures that the ﬁnancial report, comprising the ﬁnancial statements and notes thereto, complies with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). This is the ﬁrst full year ﬁnancial report prepared based on AIFRS and comparatives for the year ended 30 June 2005
have been restated accordingly. A summary of the signiﬁcant accounting policies of the Company under AIFRS are disclosed in Note 1(d) below.
Reconciliations of:
• AIFRS equity as at 1 July 2004 and 30 June 2005; and
• AIFRS proﬁt for the year ended 30 June 2005,
to the balances reported in the 30 June 2005 ﬁnancial report prepared under Australian Accounting Standards applicable before 1 January 2005 (AGAAP)
are detailed in Note 1(f) below.
The following Australian Accounting Standards have recently been issued or amended but are not yet effective and have not been adopted for the year
ended 30 June 2006.

AASB
Amendment

Affected Standard/(s)

Nature of change to accounting policy

Application date
of standard

Application date
for the Company

2004-3

AASB 1 First-time adoption of AIFRS,
AASB 101 Presentation of
Financial Statements,
AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures

No change to accounting policy required.
Therefore no impact.

1 January 2006

1 July 2006

2005-1

AASB 139 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement

No change to accounting policy required.
Therefore no impact.

1 January 2006

1 July 2006

2005-4

AASB 139 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement,
AASB 132 Financial Instruments:
Disclosure and Presentation,
AASB 1 First-time adoption of AIFRS

No change to accounting policy required.
Therefore no impact.

1 January 2006

1 July 2006

2005-5

AASB 1 First-time adoption of AIFRS,
AASB 139 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement

No change to accounting policy required.
Therefore no impact.

1 January 2006

1 July 2006

2005-6

AASB 3 Business Combinations

No change to accounting policy required.
Therefore no impact.

1 January 2006

1 July 2006
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Continued
NOTE 1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

AASB
Amendment

Affected Standard/(s)

Nature of change to accounting policy

Application date
of standard

Application date
for the Company

2005-9

AASB 139 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement,
AASB 132 Financial Instruments:
Disclosure and Presentation

No change to accounting policy required.
Therefore no impact.

1 January 2006

1 July 2006

2005-10

AASB 132 Financial Instruments:
Disclosure and Presentation,
AASB 101 Presentation of
Financial Statements,
AASB 114 Segment Reporting,
AASB 117 Leases, AASB 133
Earnings per Share, AASB 139
Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement,
AASB 1 First-time adoption of AIFRS

No change to accounting policy required.
Therefore no impact.

1 January 2006

1 July 2006

2006-1

AASB 121 The Effects of Change
in Foreign Currency Rates

No change to accounting policy required.
Therefore no impact.

1 January 2006

1 July 2006

There were no urgent issues group pronouncements on issue at 30 June 2006 which are expected to have an adverse impact on the Company.

c)

Comparative Information

Where applicable, certain comparative numbers have been restated in order to comply with the current year presentation of the ﬁnancial report.

d)

Summary of Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies

Revenue Recognition
Software Licence Fee Revenue
Revenue from licence fees due to software sales is recognised on the transferring of signiﬁcant risks and rewards of ownership of the licensed software under an
agreement between the company and the customer.
Implementation and Consulting Services Revenue for Licensed Software
Revenue from implementation and consulting services attributable to licensed software is recognised in proportion to the stage of completion.
Post Sales Customer Support Revenue for Licensed Software
Post sales customer support (PSCS) revenue for licensed software comprises fees for ongoing upgrades, minor software revisions and helpline support. PSCS
revenue is allocated between annual fees for helpline support and fees for rights of access to ongoing upgrades, minor software patches. At each reporting date
the unearned portion of help line support fees is assessed and deferred to be recognised over the period of service. Fees for rights of access to ongoing upgrades
and minor software revisions are recognised at the commencement of the period to which they relate on the basis that the company has no ongoing obligations
or required expenditure related to this revenue.
Project Services Revenue
Revenue from project services agreements is recognised in proportion to their stage of completion, typically in accordance with the achievement of contract
milestones and/or hours expended.
Unearned Services Revenue
Amounts received from customers in advance of provision of services are accounted for as a liability called Unearned Revenue.
Earned and Unbilled Revenue
Amounts recorded as Earned and Unbilled Revenue represent revenues recorded on Software Licence fees and PSCS fees not yet invoiced to customers.
These amounts have met the revenue recognition criteria of the Company, but have not reached the payment milestones contracted with customers.
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Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated ﬁnancial statements include the ﬁnancial statements of the parent entity, Technology One Limited and its controlled entities, referred to
collectively throughout these ﬁnancial statements as the Company.
All inter-entity balances and transactions have been eliminated. Where an entity either began or ceased to be controlled during the year, the results are
included only from the date control commenced or up to the date control ceased.
Financial statements of foreign controlled entities are prepared in accordance with overseas accounting principles and are, for consolidation purposes,
adjusted to comply with group policy and AIFRS.
Research and Development Costs
Research and development expenses include payroll, employee beneﬁts and other employee-related costs associated with product development.
Technological feasibility for software products is reached shortly before the products are released for commercial sale to customers. Costs incurred after
technological feasibility is established are not material, and accordingly, all research and development costs are expensed when incurred.
Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value. Depreciation is calculated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful economic lives of the assets as follows:

Ofﬁce furniture and equipment
Computer software
Motor vehicles

Life

Method

3-11 years
3-4 years
4 years

Straight line
Straight line
Straight line

Impairment
The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may not be recoverable. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inﬂows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cashgenerating unit to which the asset belongs. If any such indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, the
assets or cash-generating units are written down to their recoverable amounts. The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment is the greater of
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash ﬂows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reﬂects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks speciﬁc to the asset.
Foreign Currency Transactions
Both the functional and presentation currency of Technology One Limited is Australian dollars (AUD).
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All exchange differences in
the consolidated ﬁnancial report are taken to the income statement.
The functional currency of the overseas subsidiaries, Technology One New Zealand Ltd is New Zealand dollars (NZD), Technology One Corporation SDN
BHD is Malaysian Ringgit (RM) and Technology One UK Limited is Great British Pounds (GBP).
As at the reporting date, the assets and liabilities of these overseas subsidiaries are translated into the presentation currency of Technology One Limited at
the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and the income statements are translated at the weighted average exchange rates for the period.
The exchange differences arising on the translation are taken directly to a separate component of equity.
On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
Income Statement.
Receivables
Trade receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less a provision for any uncollectible debts. The provision for doubtful debts is
measured as the difference between the carrying amount of trade debtors and the estimated future cash ﬂows expected to be received from the
relevant debtors.
Receivables from related parties are recognised and carried at the nominal amount due. Interest is taken up as income on an accrual basis.
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Continued
NOTE 1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
Goodwill
Goodwill on acquisition is initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of the business combination over the acquirer’s interest in the net fair
value of the identiﬁable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.
Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is not amortised. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired.
As at the acquisition date, any goodwill acquired is allocated to each of the cash-generating units expected to beneﬁt from the combination’s synergies.
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
Income Tax
Deferred income tax is provided on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for ﬁnancial reporting purposes.
Deferred income tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences:
• except where the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting proﬁt nor taxable proﬁt or loss; and
• in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses, to the extent
that it is probable that taxable proﬁt will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry-forward of unused tax assets and
unused tax losses can be utilised:
• except where the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting proﬁt nor taxable proﬁt or loss; and
• in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable proﬁt will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufﬁcient taxable proﬁt will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Income taxes relating to items recognised directly in equity are recognised in equity and not in the Income Statement.
Provision for Employee Beneﬁts
Provision has been made in the ﬁnancial statements for beneﬁts accruing to employees in relation to annual leave and long service leave. No provision is
made for non-vesting sick leave.
All on-costs, including payroll tax, workers’ compensation premiums and fringe beneﬁts tax are included in the determination of provisions. Annual leave
and the current portion of the long service leave provision are measured at their nominal amounts.
The non-current portion of long service leave is measured at the present value of estimated future cash ﬂows, discounted by 5.79% the interest rate
applicable to 10 year Commonwealth Government bonds.
Employee superannuation funds exist to provide beneﬁts for the employees and their dependants on retirement, death or disability. The contributions
made to these funds by the company are expensed in the year to which they relate as all contributions are made to deﬁned contribution funds.
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Recoverable Amounts of Non-Current Assets
At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. Where an indicator of impairment exists,
the Company makes a formal estimate of the recoverable amount. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the greater of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset’s value in use
cannot be estimated to be close to its fair value less costs to sell and it does not generate cash inﬂows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash ﬂows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reﬂects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks speciﬁc to the asset.
Leased Assets
Leases are classiﬁed at their inception as either operating or ﬁnance leases based on the economic substance of the agreement so as to reﬂect the risks and
beneﬁts incidental to ownership.
Operating
Operating leases under which the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and beneﬁts of ownership of the leased items are classiﬁed as
operating leases. Operating lease payments are included in the determination of the operating proﬁt in equal instalments over the lease term.
Financing
Leases which effectively transfer substantially all the risks and beneﬁts incidental to ownership of the leased item to the Company are capitalised at
the present value of the minimum lease payments and disclosed as property, plant and equipment under lease. A lease liability of equal value is also
recognised.
Capitalised leased assets are amortised over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the assets and the lease term. Minimum lease payments are
allocated between interest expense and reduction of the lease liability with the interest expense calculated using the interest rate implicit in the lease and
charged directly to the Income Statement.
Share–Based Payment Transactions
The Company provides beneﬁts to certain employees in the form of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees render services in exchange
for rights over shares. The cost of share-based payment transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments
at the date at which they are granted. Refer to Note 17.
The cost of share-based payments is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or
service conditions are fulﬁlled, ending on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (the vesting period). No expense is
recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest.
Intangible Assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are capitalised at cost, and if acquired as a result of a business combination, capitalised at fair value as at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, the cost model is applied to all classes of intangible assets. The useful lives of the intangible assets are assessed
to be either ﬁnite or inﬁnite. Where amortisation is charged on intangible assets with ﬁnite lives, this expense is taken to the income statement through
the ‘depreciation and amortisation expense’ line item. Intangible assets are tested for impairment where an indicator of impairment exists. Useful lives
are examined on an annual basis and adjustments, where applicable, are made on a prospective basis.
Gains or losses arising from the derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the income statement when the intangible asset is derecognised.
Purchase cost of the intellectual property known as People One (TechnologyOne HR & Payroll), has been capitalised and has been amortised over a period
of ﬁve years and now has a written down value of nil.
Purchase cost of the intellectual property known as Retail One (TechnologyOne Supply Chain) has been capitalised and is being amortised over a period of
10 years.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and short-term deposits in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less.
For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as deﬁned above, net of outstanding bank
overdrafts.
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Continued
NOTE 1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
Investments
All investments are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given and including acquisition charges associated with the
investment.
Investments held which are classiﬁed as available–for–sale are measured at fair value where such investments comprise tradeable securities, fair value is
determined by reference to quoted market prices in an active, liquid and observable market. On adoption of fair value accounting for these assets a gain
of $27,000 was recorded.
Gains or losses on available-for-sale investments are recognised as a separate component of equity until the investment is sold, collected or otherwise
disposed of, or until the investment is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity is included in the
Income Statement.
Payables
Liabilities for trade creditors and other amounts are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future for goods and
services received, whether or not billed to the Company.
Payables to related parties are carried at the principal amount.
Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outﬂow of
resources embodying economic beneﬁts will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Financial Instruments included in Equity
Ordinary share capital bears no special terms or conditions affecting income or capital entitlements of the shareholders.
Financial Instruments included in Liabilities
Interest is recognised as an expense on an effective yield basis.
Financial Instruments included in Assets
Trade debtors are initially recorded at the amount of contracted sales proceeds.
Provision for doubtful debts is recognised to the extent that recovery of the outstanding receivable balance is considered less than likely. Any provision
established is based on a review of all outstanding amounts at balance date.
Bank deposits are carried at cost. Interest revenue is recognised on an effective yield basis.
Goods and Services Tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except where the amount of GST incurred is not
recoverable from the Australian Tax Ofﬁce (ATO). In these circumstances, the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part
of the item of expense. Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to,
the ATO is included as a current asset or liability in the balance sheet. Cash ﬂows are included in the Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis. The GST
component of cash ﬂows arising from investing and ﬁnancing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are classiﬁed as operating cash
ﬂows.
Share Buy-Back
The price paid for the repurchase of contributed equity is taken as a direct charge to equity. The price paid is measured at the fair value of consideration
given. Any costs associated with the buy-back are taken as a direct charge to equity.
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Tax Consolidations
From 1 July 2003, for purposes of income taxation, Technology One Limited and its 100% owned subsidiary, Proclaim Software Pty Ltd, have formed a
consolidated tax group. These companies have entered into a tax sharing arrangement in order to allocate income tax expense on a pro-rata basis.

e)

AASB 1 Transitional Exemptions

The Company has made an election in relation to the transitional exemptions allowed by AASB 1 First-time Adoption of Australian Equivalents to International
Financial Reporting Standards as follows:

• Business combinations
AASB 3 Business Combinations was not applied retrospectively to past business combinations undertaken before the date of transition to AIFRS.

• Exemption from the requirement to restate comparative information for AASB 132 and AASB 139
Restatements have not been made of comparative information under AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation and Disclosure and AASB 139 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

• Employee share options
No expense has been recorded for options issued before 7 November 2002 that had vested before 1 January 2005.

f)

Impact of Adoption of AIFRS
i) Reconciliation of total equity as presented under previous AGAAP to that under AIFRS

Note

Total equity under AGAAP
Adjustments to retained earnings (net of tax)
Write-back of goodwill amortisation
(i)
Write-back of FOREX loss translation
(ii)
Recognition of FOREX reserve
(ii)
Change in revenue recognition policy
(iii)
Tax effect of above adjustments
Total equity under AIFRS
*

CONSOLIDATED
30/06/05**
01/07/04*
$000
$000
38,500

36,956

PARENT
30/06/05**
$000

01/07/04*
$000

34,923

33,704

596
105
(105)
(1,122)
354

—
—
—
(548)
164

—
—
—
(544)
163

38,328

36,572

34,542

—
—
—
(548)
164
33,320

This column represents the adjustments as at the date of transition to AIFRS.

** This column represents the cumulative adjustments as at the date of transition to AIFRS and those for the year ended 30 June 2005.
(i)

Under AASB 3 Business Combinations, goodwill is not amortised but instead is subject to impairment testing on an annual basis or upon the
occurrence of triggers which may indicate a potential impairment. Under AGAAP, the Company amortised goodwill over its useful life but
not exceeding 20 years. Technology One Limited has elected not to apply AASB 3 retrospectively and hence, prior year amortisation was not
written-back as at the date of transition.

(ii) Under AASB 121 The Effects of Changes of Foreign Exchange Rates, the temporal method of translation which applied under AGAAP is no longer
allowed. All Technology One Limited subsidiaries were integrated and thus previously used this method of foreign currency translation. All
translation exchange differences must now be recorded in a separate component of equity rather than through the Income Statement.
(iii) Under AASB 118 Revenue, the criteria for revenue recognition on sale of goods has changed from one of control passing (under AGAAP) to
signiﬁcant risks and rewards of ownership transferring to customers.
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Continued
NOTE 1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
ii)

Reconciliation of net proﬁt under AGAAP to that under AIFRS

Note

Net proﬁt as reported under AGAAP
Write-back of goodwill amortisation
Write-back of FOREX loss on translation
Change in revenue recognition policy
Tax effect of above adjustments
Net proﬁt under AIFRS

(i)

(i)
(ii)
(iii)

CONSOLIDATED
2005
$000
10,280
596
105
(548)
164
10,597

PARENT
2005
$000
9,955
—
—
3
(1)
9,957

Under AASB 3 Business Combinations, goodwill is not permitted to be amortised but instead is subject to annual impairment testing. Under
AGAAP, Technology One Limited amortised goodwill over its useful life but not exceeding 20 years. Under the new policy, amortisation would
no longer be charged, but goodwill would be written down to the extent it is impaired.

(ii) Under AASB 121 The Effects of Changes of Foreign Exchange Rates, all translation exchange differences must now be recorded in a separate
component of equity rather than through the Income Statement.
(iii) Under AASB 118 Revenue, the criteria from revenue recognition on sale of goods has changed from one of control passing to signiﬁcant risks
and rewards of ownership transferring to customers.
iii)

Reconciliation of cash ﬂows under AGAAP to that under AIFRS

There are no adjustments required to cash ﬂow information as a result of the adoption of AIFRS.
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2006
$000

CONSOLIDATED
2005
$000

2006
$000

PARENT
2005
$000

17,150
18,060
21,065
8,934
65,209

12,210
14,846
17,173
9,510
53,739

14,218
16,768
18,592
8,934
58,512

10,337
12,806
15,435
9,510
48,088

1,243
—
—
33
1,276

1,285
—
—
141
1,426

1,243
3,077
2,526
47
6,893

1,215
2,025
—
153
3,393

66,485

55,165

65,405

51,481

454
63
13
530

437
76
—
513

432
63
13
508

428
76
—
504

456
128
28
612

410
176
54
640

456
128
28
612

410
176
54
640

28,023
2,363
1,602
306
404
79
1,525
34,302

23,993
2,068
1,405
(66)
267
53
1,299
29,019

26,102
2,325
1,602
290
404
79
1,184
31,986

22,599
2,038
1,405
(76)
267
53
1,140
27,426

560
47
1,186
46
—

(113)
—
1,214
30
—

131
47
1,013
46
333

(96)
—
1,060
30
—

NOTE 2. REVENUES AND EXPENSES
REVENUES AND EXPENSES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Sales Revenue
Software licence fees
Implementation and consulting services
Post sales customer support
Project services
Total sales revenue
Other Revenue
Interest received – from unrelated parties
Royalty received – from related parties
Dividends received – from related parties
Other
Total other revenue
Total revenue
Depreciation of:
- Ofﬁce furniture and equipment
- Computer software
- Motor vehicles

Amortisation of:
- Leased ofﬁce furniture and equipment
- Leased computer software
- Intellectual property

Employment Benefit Expenses:
Wages and salaries
Deﬁned contribution plan expense
Payroll tax
Provision for annual leave
Provision for long service leave
Equity based compensation
Other

Other Expense Items:
Provision for doubtful debts
Foreign exchange loss
Rental expenses on operating leases
Loss on sale of ﬁxed assets
Marketing support fee
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2006
$000

CONSOLIDATED
2005
$000

2006
$000

PARENT
2005
$000

3,676

3,740

3,540

3,597

NOTE 3. INCOME TAX
The major components of income tax expense are:
Income Statement
Current income tax
Adjustments in respect of current income tax
of previous years
Deferred Income Tax
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences
Income tax expense reported in the Income Statement

(101)

(112)

(77)

(107)

368
3,943

204
3,832

129
3,592

223
3,713

16,257

14,429

17,962

13,670

A reconciliation between tax expense and the product
of accounting proﬁt before income tax multiplied by
the Company’s applicable income tax rate is as follows:
Accounting proﬁt before income tax
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At the Company’s statutory income tax rate of 30% (2005: 30%)
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of previous years
Research and development tax concession
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax asset
Non–deductible foreign loss
Non–assessable foreign income
Expenditure not allowable for income tax purposes
Non–assessable intercompany dividend

4,877
(101)
(483)
(509)
133
—
26
—

4,329
(112)
(300)
—
—
(106)
21
—

5,389
(77)
(483)
(509)
—
—
26
(754)

4,101
(107)
(300)
—
—
—
19
—

Income tax reported in the Income Statement

3,943

3,832

3,592

3,713

Future income tax beneﬁt – deductible temporary
differences not recorded

1,081

—

1,081

—
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2006
$000

BALANCE SHEET
2005
$000

INCOME STATEMENT
2006
2005
$000
$000

(1,494)
(77)
(98)
(1,669)

(433)
(93)
(6)
(532)

1,061
(16)
92

51
(9)
3

1,135
240
200
318
82
1,975

903
223
30
—
50
1,206

(232)
(17)
(170)
(318)
(32)

(56)
74
154
—
(13)

368

204

NOTE 3. INCOME TAX continued
Deferred income tax at 30 June relates to the following:
CONSOLIDATED
Deferred tax liabilities
Unearned revenue
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes
Other

CONSOLIDATED
Deferred tax assets
Employee provisions
Provisions – other
Accrued expenses
Copyright – software
Lease liability (net)
Deferred tax expense
PARENT
Deferred tax liabilities
Unearned revenue
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes
Other

PARENT
Deferred tax assets
Employee provisions
Provisions – other
Accrued expenses
Copyright – software
Lease liability (net)
Deferred tax expense

(1,192)
(77)
(67)
(1,336)

(355)
(93)
(28)
(476)

837
(16)
39

88
(9)
25

1,111
226
200
318
82
1,937

903
223
30
—
50
1,206

(208)
(3)
(170)
(318)
(32)

(96)
74
154
—
(13)

129

223

Tax consolidation
Technology One Limited and its 100% owned Australian resident subsidiaries have formed a tax consolidated group with effect from 1 July 2003.
Technology One Limited is the head entity of the tax consolidated group. Members of the group have entered into a tax sharing arrangement in order
to allocate income tax expense to the wholly owned subsidiaries on a pro-rata basis. In addition the agreement provides for the allocation of income tax
liabilities between the entities should the head entity default on its tax payment obligations. At the balance date, no allocations have been made as there
is only one 100% owned Australian entity which is in preparation for liquidation.
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2006
$000

CONSOLIDATED
2005
$000

2006
$000

PARENT
2005
$000

5,097
4,146
9,243

4,780
4,191
8,971

5,097
4,146
9,243

4,780
4,191
8,971

NOTE 4. DIVIDENDS PAID AND PROPOSED
(a) Dividends Paid
Final dividend 2005 1.7 cents (2004: 1.6 cents) – fully franked
Interim dividend 2006 1.4 cents (2005: 1.4 cents) – fully franked

(b) Dividends Proposed
On 25 August 2006 the directors resolved to pay a ﬁnal dividend for the 2006 ﬁnancial year of 2.01 cents per share, fully franked.

(c) Franking Credit Balance
The amount of franking credits available for the subsequent
ﬁnancial year are:
Franking account balance as at the end of the ﬁnancial year
Franking credits that will arise from the payment of income tax
payable as at the end of the ﬁnancial year
Franking account balance

3,718

3,098

3,718

1,138

(72)
3,646

1,347
4,445

(72)
3,646

1,335
2,473

The tax rate at which paid dividends have been franked is 30% (2005: 30%). Dividends proposed will be franked at the rate of 30% (2005: 30%).
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2006
$000

CONSOLIDATED
2005
$000

2006
$000

PARENT
2005
$000

6,056
13,280

5,506
18,117

4,158
13,280

4,684
18,117

19,336

23,623

17,438

22,801

NOTE 5. CASH ASSETS
(a) Cash is deﬁned to include the following:
Cash at bank
Money market accounts at call

Cash at bank earns interest at ﬂoating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Money market accounts at call are made for varying periods of between one
day and three months, depending on immediate cash requirements of the Company, and earn interest at the respective money market deposit rates.
The fair value of cash assets at 30 June 2006 and 2005 are their carrying values.

(b) Reconciliation of net operating cash ﬂows to net proﬁt
Net proﬁt

12,314

10,597

14,370

9,957

1,142
46
79

1,153
30
53

1,120
46
79

1,144
30
53

700
436

199
(164)

692
13

(1,246)
1,138

(141)
44

(1,348)
860

(1,936)
(305)
(67)
(3,168)
(1,088)

(124)
142
(65)
(158)
(52)

(2,158)
23
(70)
(2,686)
(798)

353
51
4
(390)
(289)

475
116
(555)
532

116
51
(1,245)
625

386
422
(3,966)
436

238
(35)
473
439

8,613

11,061

7,421

Adjustments for non-cash expense items
Depreciation and amortisation
Loss on sale of assets
Equity based remuneration expense
Transfers to/(from) provisions:
Employee entitlements
Doubtful debts
Movement in provision for:
Income tax payable
Deferred income tax

Changes in assets and liabilities
(Increase)/decrease in assets:
Trade debtors
Sundry debtors
Prepayments
Earned and unbilled revenue
Other
(Decrease)/increase in liabilities:
Trade creditors
Accruals
Other
Unearned revenue
Net operating cash ﬂows

320
(142)
1,012
103

13,321

(c) Controlled entities acquired
There were no controlled entities acquired during the 2006 ﬁnancial year.

(d) Non-cash ﬁnancing and investing activities
During the ﬁnancial year the Company acquired equipment and software with an aggregate fair value of $750,663 (2005: $552,094), by means of ﬁnance leases.
All dividends received by the parent entity in the period were non cash.
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2006
$000

CONSOLIDATED
2005
$000

2006
$000

PARENT
2005
$000

11,929
(659)
207
11,477

9,993
(223)
163
9,933

10,366
(167)
110
10,309

8,208
(154)
118
8,172

NOTE 6. RECEIVABLES (Current)
Trade debtors (i)
Provision for doubtful debts
Sundry debtors

(i) Trade debtors are non-interest bearing and are on 30 day terms. An allowance for doubtful debts is made when there is objective evidence that a trade
debtor is impaired. The amount of the provision for doubtful debts has been measured as the difference between the carrying amount of trade debtors
and the estimated future cash ﬂows expected to be received from the relevant debtors.

NOTE 7. OTHER ASSETS (Current)
Prepayments
Amounts owing from controlled entities
Income tax receivable
Other

356
—
235
574
1,165

291
—
—
283
574

356
2,060
65
652
3,133

291
—
—
580
871

Cost
Opening balance
Additions
Disposals
Closing balance

3,108
926
(666)
3,368

3,321
536
(749)
3,108

3,052
807
(666)
3,193

3,119
536
(603)
3,052

Accumulated depreciation
Opening balance
Depreciation for the year
Disposals
Closing balance
Net book value

1,922
454
(592)
1,784
1,584

2,147
437
(662)
1,922
1,186

1,890
432
(593)
1,729
1,464

2,031
428
(569)
1,890
1,162

Cost
Opening balance
Additions
Disposals
Closing balance

1,634
713
(256)
2,091

1,251
389
(6)
1,634

1,634
713
(256)
2,091

1,251
389
(6)
1,634

Accumulated amortisation
Opening balance
Amortisation for the year
Disposals
Closing balance
Net book value

1,056
456
(239)
1,273
818

652
410
(6)
1,056
578

1,056
456
(239)
1,273
818

652
410
(6)
1,056
578

NOTE 8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Ofﬁce Furniture and Equipment:

Leased Ofﬁce Furniture and Equipment:
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2006
$000

CONSOLIDATED
2005
$000

2006
$000

PARENT
2005
$000

NOTE 8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT continued
Computer Software:
Cost
Opening balance
Additions
Disposals
Closing balance

669
10
—
679

738
24
(93)
669

669
10
—
679

645
24
—
669

Accumulated depreciation
Opening balance
Depreciation for the year
Disposals
Closing balance
Net book value

518
63
—
581
98

535
76
(93)
518
151

518
63
—
581
98

442
76
—
518
151

Cost
Opening balance
Additions
Closing balance

739
38
777

576
163
739

739
38
777

576
163
739

Accumulated amortisation
Opening balance
Amortisation for the year
Closing balance
Net book value

520
128
648
129

344
176
520
219

520
128
648
129

344
176
520
219

Cost
Opening balance
Additions
Closing balance

32
38
70

—
32
32

32
38
70

—
32
32

Accumulated depreciation
Opening balance
Depreciation for the year
Closing balance
Net book value

—
13
13
57

—
—
—
32

—
13
13
57

—
—
—
32

6,985
2,686

6,182
2,166

6,810
2,566

6,126
2,142

Leased Computer Software:

Motor Vehicles:

Total property, plant and equipment, at cost
Total property, plant and equipment, net

2006 ANNUAL REPORT

53

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Continued

2006
$000

CONSOLIDATED
2005
$000

2006
$000

PARENT
2005
$000

Cost
Opening balance
Additions
Closing balance

480
—
480

480
—
480

480
—
480

480
—
480

Accumulated amortisation
Opening balance
Amortisation for the year
Closing balance
Net book value

289
28
317
163

235
54
289
191

289
28
317
163

235
54
289
191

Purchased goodwill (i)

9,464

9,464

9,464

—

Total intangible assets, at cost
Total intangible assets, net

9,944
9,627

9,944
9,655

9,944
9,627

480
191

NOTE 9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL
Intellectual Property:

Goodwill:

(i) Refer to Note 10

IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL
Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been allocated to the software engineering cash–generating unit. This cash–generating unit is a
reportable segment.
The recoverable amount of the software engineering unit has been determined based on a value-in-use calculation using cash ﬂow projections based on
ﬁnancial budgets approved by senior management covering a ﬁve year period.
The discount rate applied to cash ﬂow projections is 15.79% (2005: 15.18%).
The key assumptions used in value-in-use calculations for 30 June 2006 and 30 June 2005 are:
• Budgeted margins – the basis used to determine the value assigned to budgeted margin is the average margin achieved in the year immediately before
the budgeted year.
• Bond rates – the yield on a ﬁve year government bond rate at the beginning of the budgeted year is used.

2006
$000

CONSOLIDATED
2005
$000

2006
$000

PARENT
2005
$000

—

—

—

12,173

NOTE 10. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Shares not quoted on prescribed stock exchanges:
Shares in controlled entities – at cost (Note 28)

Proclaim Software Pty Ltd is in the ﬁnal stage of being liquidated (refer Note 31). All business operations and net assets of this controlled entity have been
transferred to the parent entity.

54

2006 ANNUAL REPORT

CONSOLIDATED
2005
$000

2006
$000

2005
$000

1,975

1,206

1,937

1,206

3,545
90
927
—
4,562

2,699
71
1,005
—
3,775

3,306
90
748
—
4,144

2,503
71
768
4,073
7,415

2006
$000

PARENT

NOTE 11. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSET (Non-Current)
Future income tax beneﬁt attributable to
deductible temporary differences

NOTE 12. PAYABLES
Trade payables (i)
Directors’ fees
Sundry creditors (i)
Amounts owing to controlled entities

(i) Trade payables and sundry creditors are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 day terms.

NOTE 13. PROVISIONS (Current)
Annual leave
Long service leave

2,127
960
3,087

1,831
785
2,616

2,027
960
2,987

1,739
785
2,524

449

415

449

415

773

550

773

550

714

485

714

485

—

46

—

46

22,981

24,827

22,981

24,827

NOTE 14. INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES
Current
Lease liability (Note 19)

Non-Current
Lease liability (Note 19)

NOTE 15. PROVISIONS (Non-Current)
Long service leave

NOTE 16. OTHER LIABILITIES (Non-Current)
Lease incentive

NOTE 17. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
Ordinary shares

Movements in Contributed Equity for the Year:
NUMBER OF ORDINARY SHARES ‘000
CONSOLIDATED
2006

PARENT
2005

2006

2005

Opening number of shares
Share buy-back
Options exercised – refer over page

299,421
(3,863)
1,101

298,706
(600)
1,315

299,421
(3,863)
1,101

298,706
(600)
1,315

Closing number of shares

296,659

299,421

296,659

299,421

A reconciliation of movements in the dollar value of contributed equity is included in the Statement of Changes in Equity.
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Continued
NOTE 17. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY continued
Employee Share Option Plan
Share options are granted to employees at the discretion of the Executive Chairman. The exercise price of the options is set based on future expected
share price movements. The options vest if and when the employees satisﬁes the period of service contained in each option grant. The contractual life of
each option varies between two and ﬁve years. There are no cash settlement alternatives.
The following table lists the average inputs into the model used for the previous two years.
Dividend yield (%)
4.5
Expected volatility (%)
42.9
Risk free interest rate (%)
5.5
Expected life of option (years)
5.00
Option exercise price ($)
0.55
Weighted average share price at grant date ($) 0.56

Employee Options Over Ordinary Shares in Technology One Limited (a):
2006
Issue date

1-Jul-04

31-Oct-02

24-Sep-02

12-Sep-02

1-Jul-02

Number of Options
On issue at beginning of the year

5,500,000

156,250

1,940,000

525,000

400,000

Issued during the year

—

—

—

—

—

Exercised during the year

—

(50,000)

(576,250)

(75,000)

Cancelled and expired during the year

—

—

(333,750)

(30,000)

—

5,500,000

106,250

1,030,000

420,000

—

4
$0.55

2
$0.39

33
$0.45

3
$0.45

1
$0.00

Exercise period (commencement)

Jul 2007
to Jul 2011

Oct 2004
to Oct 2007

Jan 2003
to Nov 2006

Apr 2003
to May 2007

Jun 2004
to Jun 2007

Expiration date

Jun 2012
to Jun 2016

Oct 2006
to Oct 2009

Jan 2005
to Nov 2008

Apr 2005
to May 2009

Jun 2006
to Jun 2009

$0.15 to $0.19

$0.12

$0.11

$0.13

$0.55

Outstanding at date of Directors’ Report
Number of recipients
Exercise price

Fair value of option at issue date (b)
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(400,000)

NOTE 17. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY continued
2005
Issue date

1-Jul-04

31-Oct-02

24-Sep-02

12-Sep-02

1-Jul-02

Number of Options
On issue at beginning of the year

—

375,000

3,100,000

1,155,000

400,000

5,500,000

—

—

—

—

Exercised during the year

—

(68,750)

(1,051,000)

(195,000)

—

Cancelled and expired during the year

—

(150,000)

(109,000)

(435,000)

—

5,500,000

156,250

1,940,000

525,000

400,000

4
$0.55

2
$0.39

34
$0.45

3
$0.45

1
$0.00

Exercise period (commencement)

Jul 2007
to Jul 2011

Oct 2004
to Oct 2007

Jan 2003
to Nov 2006

Apr 2003
to May 2007

Jun 2004
to Jun 2007

Expiration date

Jun 2012
to Jun 2016

Oct 2006
to Oct 2009

Jan 2005
to Nov 2008

Apr 2005
to May 2009

Jun 2006
to Jun 2009

$0.15 to $0.19

$0.12

$0.11

$0.13

$0.55

Issued during the year

Outstanding at date of Directors’ Report
Number of recipients
Exercise price

Fair value of option at issue date (b)
(a)
(b)

Each option entitles the holder to purchase one share.
Fair values of options granted as part of remuneration are based on values determined using the binomial option pricing model.

2006
$000

CONSOLIDATED
2005
$000

2006
$000

PARENT
2005
$000

5,963
132
(547)
66
5,614

5,097
53
(105)
—
5,045

5,963
132
—
66
6,161

5,097
53
—
—
5,150

NOTE 18. RESERVES
Dividend reserve
Share option reserve
Foreign exchange reserve
Investment revaluation reserve

Dividend reserve
The reserve records retained earnings set aside for the payment of future dividends.

Share option reserve
The reserve is used to record the value of equity beneﬁts provided to employees, through share-based payment transactions.

Foreign exchange reserve
The reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the translation of the ﬁnancial statements of foreign subsidiaries.

Investment revaluation reserve
The reserve is used to record changes in fair values of available-for-sale investments.
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CONSOLIDATED
2005
$000

2006
$000

2005
$000

Non cancellable operating leases contracted but not capitalised in the accounts are due as follows:
Not later than one year
1,313
1,020
Later than one year and not later than ﬁve years
2,060
866
3,373
1,886

1,135
2,060
3,195

877
866
1,743

2006
$000

PARENT

NOTE 19. LEASING COMMITMENTS
Operating Lease Commitments:

Operating leases are entered into as a means of acquiring access to ofﬁce property. Rental payments are generally ﬁxed, but with inﬂation escalation
clauses on which contingent rentals are determined. No renewal or purchase options exist in relation to operating leases and no operating leases contain
restrictions on ﬁnancing or other leasing activities.

Finance Lease Commitments:
Non cancellable ﬁnance leases capitalised in the accounts are due as follows:
Not later than one year
505
Later than one year and not later than ﬁve years
855
Total minimum lease payments
1,360
Future ﬁnance charges
(138)
Lease liability
1,222
Current liability
Non-current liability

449
773
1,222

472
606
1,078
(113)
965

505
855
1,360
(138)
1,222

472
606
1,078
(113)
965

415
550
965

449
773
1,222

415
550
965

The ﬁnance lease liabilities above are secured by a Registered Mortgage Debenture given by the Company in favour of ANZ Banking Group Limited for the
assets under lease. The Company has available leasing facilities of $2,000,000 of which $778,000 remain un-drawn at 30 June 2006.

2006
$

CONSOLIDATED
2005
$

2006
$

PARENT
2005
$

Amounts received, or due and receivable, for the audit and
review of the ﬁnancial reports of the parent entity and any
other entity in the consolidated group by:
Ernst & Young

171,000

146,000

156,000

131,000

Amounts received, or due and receivable, for other services
in relation to all entities in the consolidated group by:
Ernst & Young

132,367

99,514

68,995

54,970

2006
$

CONSOLIDATED
2005
$

2006
$

2005
$

48,802
42,833
40,682
132,317

37,120
33,653
28,741
99,514

48,802
17,693
2,500
68,995

37,120
16,370
1,480
54,970

NOTE 20. REMUNERATION OF AUDITOR

Other services provided by Ernst & Young in the current and prior ﬁnancial year were:

Other assurance services
Compliance services – taxation and statutory
Taxation advice
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PARENT

2006

CONSOLIDATED
2005

12,314

10,597

Basic earnings per share (cents per share)

4.12

3.54

Diluted earnings per share (cents per share)

4.10

3.53

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
used in the calculation of basic earnings per share

298,700,284

299,229,021

Weighted average number of ordinary shares and
potential ordinary shares used in the calculation of
diluted earnings per share

300,287,509

299,999,910

Unallocated
$000

Consolidated
$000

NOTE 21. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Earnings used for calculating basic and diluted earnings per share ($000)

There are no potentially dilutive share instruments not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share.

NOTE 22. SEGMENT REPORTING
Primary Segments – Business Units
Service
Delivery
$000

Software
Engineering
$000
30 June 2006

Revenue
External sales
Other revenue
Inter-segment sales

48,344
1
—
48,345

16,035
11
11,989
28,035

830
1,264
—
2,094

65,209
1,276
11,989
78,474
(11,989)
66,485

15,172

8,094

(7,009)

16,257
(3,943)
12,314

13,305
5,398

15,424
3,885

25,367
5,557

54,096
14,840

644
426
597

712
470
419

369
246
300

1,725
1,142
1,316

Inter-segment elimination
Total Consolidated Revenue

Result
Segment result (before tax)
Income tax expense
Net Proﬁt

Assets and Liabilities
Total segment assets
Total segment liabilities

Other Segment Information
Capital expenditure
Depreciation and amortisation
Total non-cash expenses

Cash Flow Information
Net cash ﬂow from operating activities
Net cash ﬂow from investing activities
Net cash ﬂow from ﬁnancing activities

11,331
(608)
—

4,121
(211)
—

(6,839)
(992)
(11,089)

8,613
(1,811)
(11,089)
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NOTE 22. SEGMENT REPORTING continued
Service
Delivery
$000

Software
Engineering
$000

Unallocated
$000

Consolidated
$000

30 June 2005
Revenue
External sales
Other revenue
Inter-segment sales

38,750
17
—
38,767

13,960
2
10,256
24,218

1,029
1,407
—
2,436

53,739
1,426
10,256
65,421
(10,256)
55,165

12,138

6,684

(4,393)

14,429
(3,832)
10,597

11,079
3,503

12,280
2,950

27,517
6,095

50,876
12,548

382
415
170

505
469
100

257
270
(78)

1,144
1,154
192

7,385
(71)
—

4,187
12
—

(511)
(1,444)
(8,788)

Inter-segment elimination
Total Consolidated Revenue

Result
Segment result (before tax)
Income tax expense
Net Proﬁt

Assets and Liabilities
Total segment assets
Total segment liabilities

Other Segment Information
Capital expenditure
Depreciation and amortisation
Total non-cash expenses

Cash Flow Information
Net cash ﬂow from operating activities
Net cash ﬂow from investing activities
Net cash ﬂow from ﬁnancing activities

11,061
(1,503)
(8,788)

Segments are comprised of:
Service Delivery:

The marketing, sale and implementation of core software products; and

Software Engineering:

The development of purpose built software to meet the needs of speciﬁc customers, plus the continuing research and development
and support of core products.
Unallocated items mainly comprise other revenue and corporate expenses.
Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Segment
capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire segment assets that are expected to be used for more than one year.

Secondary Segments – Geographical
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Australia
$000

New Zealand
$000

International
$000

Total
$000

2006
Total Consolidated Revenue
Total Segment Assets

55,251
49,547

7,838
2,263

3,396
2,286

66,485
54,096

2005
Total Consolidated Revenue
Total Segment Assets

49,246
48,485

4,947
1,805

972
586

55,165
50,876
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NOTE 23. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES
(a) Details of Directors and Key Management Personnel
The following persons held the position of director or key management personnel of Technology One Limited during all of the past ﬁnancial year, unless
otherwise stated:
(i) Directors
A Di Marco
R McLean
J Mactaggart
S Larwill
K Blinco
R Anstey

Executive Chairman
Director (non-executive)
Director (non-executive)
Director (non-executive)
Director (non-executive)
Director (non-executive) appointed 2 December 2005

(ii) Key Management Personnel
R Down
Operating Ofﬁcer – New Business Development
M Culverson
Operating Ofﬁcer – Professional Services
R Phare
Operating Ofﬁcer – Sales and Marketing
P Cameron
Operating Ofﬁcer – Project Services (ceased 10 October 2005)
D Orchard
Chief Financial Ofﬁcer and Company Secretary

(b) Remuneration of Directors and Key Management Personnel
(i)

REMUNERATION PRACTICES

The Executive Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of the company is responsible for determining and reviewing compensation
arrangements for the Executive Chairman (EC) and the key management personnel (executives). The remuneration of the Directors is approved at an
Annual General Meeting of the shareholders.
In considering the remuneration to be paid to executives, the following principles are applied:
• The Company should provide the packages needed to attract, retain and motivate highly talented and experienced executives.
• The Company should judge where to position itself relative to other companies. This involves being aware of comparable companies’ pay, but to
exercise caution.
• The Company should be sensitive to the wider scene, especially with regard to salary increases.
• Performance related elements should form a signiﬁcant proportion of the package, should align interests with those of shareholders and should provide
keen incentives.
• The performance of the Company depends upon the quality of its directors and executives. To prosper, the Company must attract, motivate and retain
highly skilled directors and executives.
• Lastly the Company must take in speciﬁc and unique conditions that may apply in individual circumstances in order to attract and retain the right
executive team in the long term.
The Company aims to reward executives with a level and mix of remuneration commensurate with their position and responsibilities within the company
and so as to:
•
•
•
•

Reward executives for Company, business unit and individual performance against targets.
Align the interests of executives with those of shareholders.
Link reward with the strategic goals and performance of the company.
Ensure total remuneration is competitive by market standards.

Remuneration consists of the following key elements:
• Fixed remuneration
• Incentive component (performance related bonus)
• Long term incentive component (share options)
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NOTE 23. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES continued
Fixed Remuneration
The level of ﬁxed remuneration is set so as to provide a base level of remuneration which is both appropriate to the position and is competitive in the
market. Executives are given the opportunity to receive their ﬁxed (primary) remuneration in a variety of forms including cash and fringe beneﬁts such as
motor vehicles.
Incentive Component
The objective of the incentive program is to link the achievement of the Company’s proﬁt target with the remuneration received by the executives charged
with meeting those targets. The incentive component of the executives’ remuneration ranges between 33 and 54% of their total remuneration. This
relatively large component is evidence of the Company’s requirement for executives to perform well, in order to attain their target remuneration.
The incentive is based on the relevant division’s, for each executive, net proﬁt before tax (NPBT) ﬁgure. NPBT has been chosen as it is the key indicator of
performance. It is calculated in accordance with statutory reporting requirements.
Long Term Incentives
The objective of having long term incentives for executives is to reward executives in a manner which aligns this element of remuneration with the
Company’s interests. By having an equity interest in the Company, it aligns the executives’ actions with the interests of shareholders. The executives must
meet continued service conditions in order to exercise these options. The options become exercisable over ﬁve separate tranches, commencing in July
2007.
Employment Contracts
The Executive Chairman, Mr Di Marco, is employed under contract. The current employment contract commenced on 1 December 1999 and continues
until terminated in accordance with the agreement. Under the terms of the present contract:
• Mr Di Marco may resign from his position and thus terminate this contract by giving not less than three months written notice.
• The company may terminate this employment agreement by either providing three months written notice or by paying the appropriate proportion of
the termination remuneration package in lieu thereof.
All other executives are employed on a continuing basis.
Apart from termination beneﬁts which accrue under statute, or mentioned above (such as unpaid annual leave, long service leave), there are no retirement
beneﬁts for executive directors and executives.
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NOTE 23. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES continued
(ii) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
Details of remuneration provided to Directors and to Key Management Personnel are as follows:

Base
Salary
$

Long Term
Emoluments
Share
Retirement
Options
Beneﬁts
granted*
$
$

Directors’
Fee
$

Performance
Related
Bonas**
$

Superannuation
$

28,925
27,938

257,260
246,586

27,615
26,711

—
—

—
—

662,269
639,647

28,925
27,938

—
—

—
73,972

—
—

—
—

28,925
128,779

28,925
27,938

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

28,925
27,938

28,925
27,938

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

28,925
27,938

28,925
27,938

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

28,925
27,938

17,208
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

17,208
—

161,833
139,690

257,260
246,586

27,615
100,683

—
—

—
—

795,177
852,240

—
—

251,595
219,256

16,120
15,313

—
—

26,304
12,459

473,124
417,164

—
—

136,875
136,470

14,416
13,857

—
—

22,671
10,623

334,130
314,914

—
—

167,372
131,148

13,418
11,016

—
—

13,457
6,199

343,329
270,764

—
—

28,899
84,814

4,332
12,757

—
—

5,522
7,852

86,887
247,166

—
—

—
—

10,196
9,436

—
—

—
—

123,473
114,278

—
—

584,741
571,688

58,482
62,379

—
—

67,954
37,133

1,360,943
1,364,286

Total
$

Directors
A Di Marco (Executive)
2006
348,469
2005
338,412
R McLean (Executive until 15 July 2004)
2006
—
2005
26,869
J Mactaggart (Non-executive)
2006
—
2005
—
S Larwill (Non-executive)
2006
—
2005
—
K Blinco (Non-executive)
2006
—
2005
—
R Anstey (Non-executive) appointed 2 December 2005
2006
—
2005
—

Total Remuneration: Directors
2006
2005

348,469
365,281

Key Management Personnel
R Down (Operating Ofﬁcer – New Business Development)
2006
179,105
2005
170,136
M Culverson (Operating Ofﬁcer – Professional Services)
2006
160,168
2005
153,964
R Phare (Operating Ofﬁcer – Sales and Marketing)
2006
149,082
2005
122,401
P Cameron (Operating Ofﬁcer – Project Services)***
2006
48,134
2005
141,743
D Orchard (Chief Financial Ofﬁcer and Company Secretary)
2006
113,277
2005
104,842

Total Remuneration: Key Management Personnel
2006
2005

649,766
693,086
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NOTE 23. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES continued
The percentage of remuneration comprising share options was: R Down 5.6%, M Culverson 6.8%, R Phare 3.9%, P Cameron 6.4%.
*

Options granted as part of remuneration are estimates only. The estimates are based on the degree of probability of future performance hurdles
being met, combined with the use of the binomial option pricing model.

**

The objective of the Bonus program is to link the achievement of the Company’s proﬁt target with the remuneration received by the executives
charged with meeting those targets. The incentive component of the executives’ remuneration ranges between 33 and 54% of their total
remuneration. This relatively large component is evidence of the Company’s requirement for executives to perform well, in order to attain their
target remuneration. The incentive is based on the Company’s NPBT ﬁgure. NPBT has been chosen as it is the key indicator of performance. It is
calculated in accordance with statutory reporting requirements.

*** Peter Cameron ceased to hold the position of Operating Ofﬁcer – Project Services from 10 October 2005. The 2006 renumeration in the table on the
previous page is only for the period 1 July to 10 October 2005.

(c) Share Options: Granted and Vested During the Year
No options were issued during the year (2005: 5,500,000 options were issued to key management employees).

(d) Option Holdings of Directors and Key Management Personnel
Balance at
beginning
of year
1 July 2005

Granted as
Remuneration

400,000

—

1,800,000
1,600,000
1,150,000
1,100,000
6,050,000

Net Change
Other

Balance at
end of year
30 June 2006

Vested at
30 June 2006
Exercisable

(400,000)

—

—

—

—
—
—
—

—
—
(95,000)
—

—
—
—
—

1,800,000
1,600,000
1,055,000
1,100,000

—
—
55,000
—

—

(495,000)

—

5,555,000

55,000

Options
Exercised

Directors
R McLean*

Key Management Personnel
R Down
M Culverson
R Phare
P Cameron

*

Mr McLean retired as an executive director on 15 July 2004 at which point he became a non-executive director.

All of the Key Managements Personnel participated in the share options granted on 1 July 2004, in addition to this R Phare has 55,000 share options
outstanding from the share options issued on 24 September 2002.
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NOTE 23. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES continued
(e) Shareholdings of Directors and Key Management Personnel (number of shares)
Balance
1 July 2005

Granted as
Remuneration

On Exercise
of Options

Purchases/
(Sales)

Balance
30 June 2006

70,378,500
100,000
75,902,500
200,000
201,285
—

—
—
—
—
—
—

—
400,000
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
15,000

70,378,500
500,000
75,902,500
200,000
201,285
15,000

300,000
110,000
—
200,000
224,351

—
—
—
—
—

—
—
95,000
—
—

—
—
(50,000)
(150,000)
—

300,000
110,000
45,000
50,000
224,351

147,616,636

—

495,000

(185,000)

147,926,636

Directors
A Di Marco
R McLean
J Mactaggart
S Larwill
K Blinco
R Anstey

Key Management Personnel
R Down
M Culverson
R Phare
P Cameron
D Orchard

All equity transactions with Directors and Key Management Personnel other than those arising from the exercise of remuneration options have been entered into
under terms and conditions no more favourable than those the entity would have adopted if dealing at arm’s length.

(f) Other Transactions and Balances with Directors and Key Management Personnel
There were no transactions during the year (2005: Nil).

NOTE 24. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(a) Ultimate Controlling Entity
The ultimate controlling entity of the consolidated entity is Technology One Limited, a company incorporated in Australia.

(b) Transactions with Related Parties in the Wholly-Owned Group
The parent entity entered into the following transactions during the year with related parties in the wholly-owned group:
•
•
•
•

loans were advanced and repayments received on short term intercompany accounts;
royalties were received and paid from several wholly-owned controlled entities;
marketing support fees were charged to a wholly-owned controlled entity; and
interest was charged on certain intercompany accounts.

These transactions were undertaken on commercial terms and conditions.
Amounts due to and receivable from related parties in the wholly-owned group are set out in the respective notes to the ﬁnancial statements.
The ownership interest in related parties in the wholly-owned group is set out in Note 28.
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Continued
NOTE 25. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The number of full-time equivalents employed at year end

2006

CONSOLIDATED
2005

2006

PARENT
2005

377

330

352

310

2006
$000

CONSOLIDATED
2005
$000

2006
$000

2005
$000

3,009
2,440
(1,898)
150
3,701

2,689
2,153
(1,913)
80
3,009

(a) Employee Beneﬁts Recognised

Opening aggregate employee entitlements liability
Arising during the year
Utilised
Discount rate adjustment
Closing aggregate employee entitlements liability

3,101
2,561
(2,014)
153
3,801

2,903
2,156
(2,043)
85
3,101

PARENT

(b) Employee Share Option Ownership Schemes
Details of the employee option ownership schemes for the company are as follows:
2006
No options were issued during the year.
2005
During the year, 5,500,000 options were issued to four key management personnel. The options in Technology One Limited are not listed. One option
entitles the key management employee to one ordinary share in Technology One Limited.
The details of options issued during the year are:

Issue Date

Exercise Price

Number of Options

Fair Value at Issue Date

1 July 2004

$0.55

5,500,000

$0.15 to $0.19

Options have been valued using the binomial option pricing model, which takes account of factors such as the option exercise price, the current level
and volatility of the underlying share price and the time to maturity of the option. Further details of options issued are contained in Note 17.
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NOTE 26. FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE
2006
$000

CONSOLIDATED
2005
$000

540
984
1,389
40

398
1,387
—
—

2
56
59

—
31
—

Current Assets
Australian dollar equivalents of amounts receivable in foreign currency which are not effectively hedged:
Malaysian Ringgit
New Zealand Dollars
United States Dollars
Great British Pounds

Current Liabilities
Australian dollar equivalents amounts payable in foreign currency which are not effectively hedged:
Malaysian Ringgit
New Zealand Dollars
Great British Pounds

NOTE 27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk through ﬁnancial assets and liabilities. The following table summarises interest rate risk, together
with effective interest rates as at balance date.

Fixed Interest Rate Maturing In
Floating
interest
rate (a)
$000

1 year
or less
$000

Over
1 to 5
years
$000

More than
5 years
$000

Noninterest
bearing
$000

Total
$000

Cash
Listed securities

19,336
2,943

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

19,336
2,943

Trade debtors
Sundry debtors

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

11,929
206

11,929
206

22,279

—

—

—

12,135

34,414

—
—

—
449

—
773

—
—

1,436
—

1,436
1,222

—

449

773

—

1,436

2,658

2006

Average interest
rate
Floating

Fixed

Financial Assets
5.75%
6.97% 8.59%

Financial Liabilities
Trade creditors
Lease liability

7.34%

(a)

Floating interest rates represent the most recently determined rate applicable to the instrument at balance date.

(b)

The carrying amounts of ﬁnancial instruments shown above approximate their fair value. The fair value of the listed securities does not consider
any capital gains tax which may arise on the sale of these listed securities.

(c)

At 30 June 2006 the Company had no debt other than ﬁnance lease liabilities as disclosed in Note 19.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Continued
NOTE 27. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
Fixed Interest Rate Maturing In

2005

Floating
interest
rate (a)
$000

1 year
or less
$000

Over
1 to 5
years
$000

More than
5 years
$000

Noninterest
bearing
$000

Total
$000

23,623

—

—

—

—

23,623

5.50%

2,000
—
—

—
—
—

—
—
—

—
—
—

—
9,993
163

2,000
9,993
163

6.82%

25,623

—

—

—

10,156

35,779

—
—

—
415

—
550

—
—

961
—

961
965

—

415

550

—

961

1,926

Average interest
rate
Floating

Fixed

Financial Assets
Cash
Listed securities
Trade debtors
Sundry debtors

Financial Liabilities
Trade creditors
Lease liability

6.92%

NOTE 28. CONTROLLED ENTITIES
The consolidated ﬁnancial statements at 30 June 2006 include the following controlled entities. The ﬁnancial years of all controlled entities are the same
as that for the parent entity.

Name of controlled entity
Technology One Corporation SDN BHD
Technology One New Zealand Ltd
Proclaim Software Pty Ltd
Technology One UK Limited

Place of
incorporation

% of shares
held 2006

% of shares
held 2005

Malaysia

100

100

New Zealand

100

100

Australia

100

100

England

100

—

The parent entity is Technology One Limited, a public company, limited by shares and is domiciled in Brisbane, Australia and whose shares are traded on the
Australian stock exchange. All entities operate in the software industry in their geographical locations.
The Registered ofﬁce is located at:
Ground Floor
67 High Street
Toowong QLD 4066

NOTE 29. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND FINANCING FACILITIES
Guarantees
At year end the Company had $1,485,046 (2005: $895,834) in outstanding performance guarantees. The total available guarantee facility is
$2,431,732 (2005: $2,500,000). The Company also has unused foreign currency dealing limits of $1,100,000.
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NOTE 30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
The Company’s principal ﬁnancial instruments are ﬁnance leases, cash and short-term deposits and assets available–for–sale.
The Company has various other ﬁnancial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.
It is, and has been throughout the period under review, the Company’s policy that no trading in ﬁnancial instruments shall be undertaken. The main risks
arising from the Company’s ﬁnancial assets and liabilities are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and credit risk. The Board reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.
Details of the signiﬁcant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which
income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of ﬁnancial asset, ﬁnancial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note 1 to the
Financial Statements.
Foreign Currency Risk
As a result of investments operations in New Zealand, Malaysia and the United Kingdom and sales contracts denominated in United States dollars, the
Company’s balance sheet can be affected by movements in the exchange rates applicable to these geographical locations and currencies.
The Company does not hedge this risk. Foreign currency exposure is shown in Note 26.
Credit Risk
The Company trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. It is the Company’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit veriﬁcation procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Company’s exposure
to bad debts is not signiﬁcant.
There are no signiﬁcant concentrations of credit risk within the Company.
Interest Rate Risk
The Company’s cash and investment assets are exposed to movements in on deposit and ﬁxed interest rates. The Company does not hedge this exposure.

NOTE 31. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Company will pay a fully franked ﬁnal dividend on 22 September 2006 of $5,962,851.
One of the company’s subsidiaries, Proclaim Software Pty Ltd, is in the process of being wound up, by way of Members’ Voluntary Liquidation.
This will be completed by 7 October 2006. The operations of Proclaim Software Pty Ltd have been transferred to the parent entity and the Proclaim One
(TechnologyOne Property) product will continue to be offered by the Company. The wind up of Proclaim is being completed for administrative
reasons only.
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DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION
In the opinion of the Directors:
(a)

the ﬁnancial statements and associated notes of the company and of the consolidated entity comply with the Corporations Act 2001;

(b)

the ﬁnancial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the ﬁnancial position of the company and of the consolidated entity as at 30 June
2006 and of their performance for the year then ended;

(c)

there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable; and

(d)

the ﬁnancial statements and notes are in accordance with Accounting Standards and Corporations Regulations 2001.

This declaration has been made after receiving the declarations required to be made to the directors in accordance with Section 295A of the
Corporations Act 2001 for the ﬁnancial year ended 30 June 2006.
Made in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

ADRIAN DI MARCO
(Executive Chairman)

Brisbane
25 August 2006
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AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION
1 Eagle St
Brisbane QLD 4000
Australia

Tel
Fax

61 7 3011 3333
61 7 3011 3100

PO Box 7878
Waterfront Place
Brisbane QLD 4001

Auditor’s Independence Declaration to the Directors of Technology One Limited

In relation to our audit of the ﬁnancial report of Technology One Limited for the ﬁnancial year ended 30 June 2006, to the best of my knowledge
and belief, there have been no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 or any applicable code of
professional conduct.

Ernst & Young

Russell Banham
Partner

Brisbane
25 August 2006
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INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT
1 Eagle St
Brisbane QLD 4000
Australia

Tel
Fax

61 7 3011 3333
61 7 3011 3100

PO Box 7878
Waterfront Place
Brisbane QLD 4001

Independent audit report to members of Technology One Limited

Scope
The ﬁnancial report and directors’ responsibility
The ﬁnancial report comprises the balance sheet, income statement, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash ﬂows, accompanying
notes to the ﬁnancial statements, and the directors’ declaration for Technology One Limited (the company) and the consolidated entity, for the
year ended 30 June 2006. The consolidated entity comprises both the company and the entities it controlled during that year.
The directors of the company are responsible for preparing a ﬁnancial report that gives a true and fair view of the ﬁnancial position and
performance of the company and the consolidated entity, and that complies with the Accounting Standards in Australia, in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001. This includes responsibility for the maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal controls that are designed to
prevent and detect fraud and error, and for the accounting policies and accounting estimates inherent in the ﬁnancial report.

Audit approach
We conducted an independent audit of the ﬁnancial report in order to express an opinion to the members of the company. Our audit was
conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards in order to provide reasonable assurance as to whether the ﬁnancial report is free of
material misstatement. The nature of an audit is inﬂuenced by factors such as the use of professional judgement, selective testing, the inherent
limitations of internal control, and the availability of persuasive rather than conclusive evidence. Therefore, an audit cannot guarantee that all
material misstatements have been detected.
We performed procedures to assess whether in all material respects the ﬁnancial reports presents fairly, in accordance with the Corporations
Act 2001, including compliance with Accounting Standards in Australia and other mandatory ﬁnancial reporting requirements in Australia, a
view which is consistent with our understanding of the company’s and the consolidated entity’s ﬁnancial position, and of their performance as
represented by the results of their operations and cash ﬂows.
We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these procedures, which included:
• examining, on a test basis, information to provide evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the ﬁnancial report; and
• assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and disclosures used and the reasonableness of signiﬁcant accounting estimates made
by the directors.
While we considered the effectiveness of management’s internal controls over ﬁnancial reporting when determining the nature and extent of our
procedures, our audit was not designed to provide assurance on internal controls.
We performed procedures to assess whether the substance of business transactions was accurately reﬂected in the ﬁnancial report and the
remuneration disclosures. These and our other procedures did not include consideration or judgement of the appropriateness and reasonableness
of the business plans or strategies adopted by the directors and management of the company.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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Independence
We are independent of the company and the consolidated entity and have met the independence requirements of Australian professional
ethical pronouncements and the Corporations Act 2001. We have given to the directors of the company a written Auditor’s Independence
Declaration a copy of which is included in the Directors’ Report.

Audit opinion
In our opinion the ﬁnancial report of Technology One Limited is in accordance with:
(a) the Corporations Act 2001, including:
(i)

giving a true and fair view of the ﬁnancial position of Technology One Limited and the consolidated entity at 30 June 2006 and
of their performance for the year ended on that date; and

(ii)

complying with Accounting Standards in Australia and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(b) other mandatory ﬁnancial reporting requirements in Australia.

Ernst & Young

Russell Banham
Partner

Brisbane
25 August 2006
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
Substantial Shareholders as at 31 August 2006
NAME

NUMBER OF ORDINARY SHARES

JL Mactaggart Holdings Pty Ltd
Masterbah Pty Ltd

75,872,500
70,372,500

Distribution of Shareholdings as at 31 August 2006
SIZE OF HOLDING

ORDINARY SHAREHOLDERS

1 to 1,000
1,001 to 5,000
5,001 to 10,000
10,001 to 100,000
100,001 and over
Total shareholders

310
1,474
1,301
1,754
128
4,967

Number of ordinary Shareholders with a less than marketable parcel

110

Voting Rights
All ordinary shares issued by Technology One Limited carry one vote per share without restriction.

Twenty Largest Shareholders as at 31 August 2006
SHAREHOLDER NAME
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
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JL Mactaggart Holdings Pty Ltd
Masterbah Pty Ltd
JP Morgan Nominees Australia Ltd
ANZ Nominees Limited (Cash Income A/c)
Queensland Investment Corporation
Citicorp Nominees Pty Ltd (CFS Developing Companies)
National Nominees Ltd
ARGO Investments Ltd
Sandhurst Trustees Ltd (Aust Ethical Equities A/c)
Citicorp Nominees Pty Ltd
Westpac Custodian Nominees Ltd
HSBC Custody Nominees (Aust) Ltd
Clahsen Enterprises Pty Ltd
Sandhurst Trustees Ltd (Aust Ethical Balanced A/c)
Charles Douglas Sheardown
Citicorp Nominees Pty Ltd (CFSIL Cwlth Boff Super A/c)
Norema Pty Ltd
Dr Russell Kay Hancock
AMP Life Ltd
Dintan Pty Ltd
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ORDINARY SHARE NUMBERS

%

75,872,500
70,372,500
10,240,378
9,561,715
7,294,167
7,288,816
6,604,469
3,290,564
2,730,880
2,707,095
2,416,172
1,888,227
1,800,000
1,072,453
900,000
885,000
720,000
700,000
698,590
675,279

25.56
23.70
3.45
3.22
2.46
2.46
2.22
1.11
0.92
0.91
0.81
0.64
0.61
0.36
0.30
0.30
0.24
0.24
0.24
0.23

CORPORATE DIRECTORY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BRANCH OFFICES

AUDITOR

Adrian Di Marco
Ron McLean
John Mactaggart
Syd Larwill
Kevin Blinco
Richard Anstey

Brisbane

Melbourne

Ernst & Young
Waterfront Place
1 Eagle Street
Brisbane Queensland 4000

Canberra

www.ey.com.au

Sydney

Adelaide
Perth

COMPANY SECRETARY
David Orchard

Hobart
Kuala Lumpur
Auckland

AUSTRALIAN BUSINESS NUMBER

Wellington

84 010 487 180

London

LAWYER
McCullough Robertson
Level 12, 66 Eagle Street
Brisbane Queensland 4000
www.mccullough.com.au

SHARE REGISTRY
REGISTERED OFFICE
Technology One Limited
TechnologyOne R&D Centre
Ground Floor
67 High Street
Toowong Queensland 4066 Australia
www.TechnologyOneCorp.com

Link Market Services Limited
Locked Bag A14
Sydney NSW 1235
Tel: 02 8280 7454
Fax: 02 9287 0303
www.linkmarketservices.com.au

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING
Australian Stock Exchange
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR
2006
22 September 2006

Distribute 2006 Annual Report

22 September 2006

Payment date for 2006 ﬁnal dividend

03 November 2006

Annual General Meeting

2007*
23 February 2007

Announcement of half year results for 2007

05 March 2007

Shares quotes ex-dividend for interim dividend

09 March 2007

Record date for interim dividend

23 March 2007

Payment date for interim dividend

23 March 2007

Distribute 2007 Half Year Results Report

24 August 2007

Announcement of full year results for 2007

03 September 2007

Shares quotes ex-dividend for ﬁnal dividend

07 September 2007

Record date for 2007 ﬁnal dividend

21 September 2007

Distribute 2007 Annual Report

21 September 2007

Payment date for 2006 ﬁnal dividend

02 November 2007

Annual General Meeting

* These dates are subject to change
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS
$

HESA/HEIMS

P/E

Australian Dollars

Higher Education Support Act/Higher
Education Information Management System

Price Earnings Ratio

AANZ
Australian, Asian & New Zealand region

ADF
Application Development Framework

AGAAP
Australian Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles

IFRS
International Financial Reporting Standards

KPIs
Key Performance Indicators

IT

POS
Point of Sale

R&D
Research and Development

RRIF

Information Technology

Federal Governments Regulations Reduction
Incentive Fund

AIFRS

Methodologies

SOA

Australian equivalents to International
Financial Reporting Standards

TechnologyOne’s standards, procedures and
business systems

Service Orientated Architecture

Best in Class

.NET

TechnologyOne delivers a series of fully
integrated solutions that are each ‘Best
in Class’, with the functional capability of
specialist solutions

The current Microsoft technology platform in
which the Connected Intelligence (Ci) series
is built

BI
Business Intelligence

Board

NPAT
Net Proﬁt After Tax

NPBT
Net Proﬁt Before Tax

The Board of Directors of Technology One
Limited

Options

Company

The option to purchase shares at a future
date

Technology One Limited

Ci

Organic growth

Connected Intelligence

Growth initiated through existing resources
(not acquisitions)

Corporations Law

Out of the Box

Corporations Law of Australia

TechnologyOne delivers the inbuilt
functionality our customers need to run their
business, without the need for third party
add-ons or costly code customisations

CRM
Customer Relationship Management

THE TECHNOLOGY ONE DIFFERENCE

The TechnologyOne Difference
The TechnologyOne Difference is deﬁned by our Power of One
value proposition, in that we take total responsibility for the success
of every customer’s investment in our world class fully integrated
enterprise business software solutions. From technology through
to services and support, we partner directly with our customers to
ensure their ongoing success.
We pride ourselves on delivering innovative enterprise business
software solutions that set the standard for others to follow. We
work relentlessly to build awesome software that has a profound
effect on the user experience by engaging, empowering and exciting
users.
TechnologyOne invests approximately 20% of its revenue each year
into research and development, which allows us to respond with
speed and agility to market changes and our customers’ changing
business requirements. We lead the market in the delivery of new
technology that signiﬁcantly enhances the way our customers do
business.
Our customer’s rely on us to deliver a best in class suite of products,
but also on our signiﬁcant experience and value-added services.
We build best practice into our world class software solutions by
listening to their needs and learning from their experience.
TechnologyOne employs a team of people who are innovative and
challenge conventional thinking. They stand out from the crowd,
because they are empowered to make a difference. We encourage
leadership and the belief that together we can achieve anything.
The TechnologyOne difference is that in partnership with our
customers, anything is possible.

